
NOTICE AND AGENDA
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

MARCH 30, 2022 - 04:00 PM
REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL-COUNCIL CHAMBERS
415 WEST UNIVERSITY DRIVE

EDINBURG, TEXAS 78541

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM

A. Prayer

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a
public comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A
spokesperson for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in
following these procedures.

5. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:

 
  A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is

introduced.
 
  B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered.
 
  C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered.
 
  D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3

minute time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The
use of a spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.

 
  E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and

maintain any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it
believes to be appropriate.

 
  F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board.
 



6. MINUTES

A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the February 23, 2022 Regular Meeting

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Reconsider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C),
Residential Use District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates
Subdivision, located at 2002 and 2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith
Canales

B. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 12.301(A)(4),
On Premise Signs, Free Standing Sign, being Lot 2, West Meadows Plaza
Subdivision, located at 3021 West Freddy Gonzalez Drive, as requested by
PongoRGV Holdings LLC.

C. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301(D)(9),
Fences Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 12, Los Lagos Phase I Subdivision,
located at 2320 Arlina Drive, as requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses T.
Ashukem

D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.301, Single
Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, Lot 56, Bentley Estates Subdivision,
located at 4809 Sheffield Street, as requested by Ali Famitafreshi

E. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301
Single-Family Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, 2) Section 3.505(A) Easements
and Utilities, and 3) 2.301(B)(2)(a) Accessory Structures to Single Family Uses,
Floor Area, Lot 2, Willow Creek Subdivision, located at 1611 South Jackson Road,
as requested by Alfonso Quintanilla, P.E., on behalf of Vivian Villarreal

F. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303,
Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, 29.130 acres out of Lot 3, Section
276, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, Lots 1-76 of proposed North
McColl Estates Subdivision, located at 501 North McColl Road, as requested by
Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of Marilyn K. Houts

8. INFORMATION ONLY
 

A. Attendance Roster

9. ADJOURNMENT

I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act,
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the bulletin board located at the main entrance to
the City offices of the City of Edinburg, (415 West University Drive), visible and accessible to the
general public during regular working hours, at 2:15 P.M. on this Friday, March 25, 2022.
 

 Alejandra Gonzalez, Planning Assistant
Planning & Zoning Department

 
MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT AT 956-

388-8202
 

NOTICE



 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE.



  

NOTICE AND AGENDA 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

FEBRUARY 23, 2022 - 4:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
415 W. UNIVERSITY DR.  
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539 

 
MINUTES 

 
Members: 
Alex Rios, Eddie Garza, George Cardenas, Diane Teter, Andre Maldonado, Ponciano Longoria, 
Marc Moran, Michael Cantu 
 
Visitors: 
Raul A. Garza                                            
Guadalupe Garza 
Adrian Guzman 
James Curtz 
M. Garza 
Hector Moreno 
Moses Ashukem 
Yasmin Diaz 
Ringo Trevino 
Glenda Garcia 
Eli Olivarez 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM  

 
Chairperson Alex Rios called the meeting to order at 4:00 P.M.  

  
A.   Prayer – Prayer was announced.  

  
B.   Pledge of Allegiance - The Pledge of Allegiance was said.  

2.  CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE  
  
Daniel Colina certified the agenda had been posted on February 17, 2022 at 4:30 P.M. 



 

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
  
     No Conflict of Interest was mentioned. 
 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS   
  

A.   Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a public 
comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A spokesperson 
for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in following these 
procedures.  

 
       No Public Comments.  
 
5. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 
  
    A.  All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is 

introduced. 
  
    B.  Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered. 
  
    C.  The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on any 

issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered. 
  
    D.  Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3 minute 

time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The use of a 
spokesperson for large groups of people will be required. 

  
    E.  Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and maintain any 

discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it believes to be 
appropriate. 

  
    F.  A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board. 
  
6. OTHER BUSINESS 
   

A.   Consider designating order of Alternate Members 
 
Chairperson Alex Rios advised of order of alternate members being Marc Moran, Michael     Cantu, 
and Ponciano Longoria. Regular members are Alex Rios, Eddie Garza, Andre Maldonado, George 
Cardenas, and Diane Teter.  
 
7.  MINUTES   
 

A.   Consider approval of the Minutes for the January 20, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 



Item was discussed after item 10A. Motion was made by Board Member Diane Teter and 
seconded by Board Member Eddie Garza to approve the Minutes for the January 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously with a vote of 5-0. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS   
 

A.   Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301, Single 
Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, and 2) Section 3.505, Easements and Utilities, 
Lot 24, Block 2, Olivia Estates Subdivision Section 2, located at 3719 Ora Street, as 
requested by Ringo G. Treviño. 

Board member George Cardenas walked in.  

There was public comments expressing their concerns regarding how close the structure was 
to the fence.  

After brief discussion, motion was made by Board Member Diane Teter and seconded by 
Board Member George Cardenas to disapprove the Variance request. Motion carried 
unanimously with a vote of 5-0.   

 
B.   Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301 (D) (9), Fences 

Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 4, Los Lagos Phase III Subdivision, located at 3321 
Macquarie Drive, as requested by Adrian Guzman 

The applicant addressed the Board and advised he will be using the same type of fence as 
Lumen. After brief discussion, motion was made by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza and 
seconded by George Cardenas to approve the Variance request. Motion carried unanimously 
with a vote of 5-0.  

 
C.   Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C), Residential 

Use District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, located at 
2002 & 2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith Canales 

Chairperson Alex Rios abstained from the item.  

There was no public comments. After brief discussion, motion was made by Board Member 
Diane Teter and seconded by Board Member George Cardenas to disapprove the Variance 
request. Motion carried with 5 members voting aye, 0 naye, and one abstention.   

 
D.   Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 

2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 
Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot 
Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 18, 
Block 263, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 1021 West Cano Street, as 
requested by Ricardo Caballero  



Board Member George Cardenas abstained from the item.  

There was public comments expressing their concerns. After brief discussion, motion was 
made by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza and seconded by Board Member Diane Teter to 
disapprove the Variance request. Motion carried with 5 members voting aye, 0 voting naye, 
and one abstention.  

 
E.   Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 

2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 
Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot 
Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 1, 
Block 265, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 1126 West Cano Street, as 
requested by Ricardo Caballero 

Board Member George Cardenas abstained from the item.  

There was public comments expressing their concerns. After brief discussion, motion was 
made by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza and seconded by Board Member Diane Teter to 
disapprove the Variance request. Motion carried with 5 members voting aye, 0 voting naye, 
and one abstention.  

 
F.   Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multifamily 

Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, a 0.776 acre tract of land out of Lot 26, Kelly-Pharr 
Subdivision, located at 1420 West Wisconsin Road, as requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf 
of Moses Ashukem 

Applicant was present and addressed the Board. After brief discussion regarding them being 
in compliance with multiple departments, motion was made by Vice Chairperson Eddie 
Garza and seconded by Board Member George Cardenas to approve the item. Motion carried 
with 4 members voting aye and 1 voting naye.   

9. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
   

A.   Unified Development Code Update 
 
Mrs. Kimberly Mendoza discussed the upcoming Steering Committee Meetings and 
advised recordings of the UDC meetings are available.   

10. INFORMATION ONLY 
   

A.   Attendance Roster  
 
After this item, the Board went back to item 7A.   

11.  ADJOURNMENT   

I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, 
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the bulletin board located at the main entrance 



to the City offices of the City of Edinburg, (415 West University Drive), visible and accessible to 
the general public during regular working hours at 4:30 P.M. on Thursday, February 17, 2022. 
  

 

  Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 
Planning & Zoning Department 

  
MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT AT 

956-388-8202 
  

NOTICE 
  
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO 
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING 
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING 
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE. 
 
There being no further discussion, meeting was adjourned.  
 



  

Variance Request 

 

ERICA EDITH CANALES  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on:  March 18, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7A 

Reconsider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C), Residential Use 

District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, located at 2002 and 

2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith Canales 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

3.201 (C) as it pertains to density for multifamily developments. The applicant is proposing to 

construct 84 apartment units on a lot that allows a maximum of 62 units by UDC standards. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located at the northeast corner of Brandi Lane and South Jackson Road, and is 

zoned Urban Residential (UR) District. Adjacent zoning is Neighborhood Conservation (NC5) 

District to the north, Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District to the south and east, and Auto-

Urban (AU) District to the west. Surrounding land uses are residential to the north and west with 

vacant land to the south and east. 

Background and History 

The property is part of the Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, which was recorded on June 4, 1998. 

The applicant is proposing a multifamily development on the subject property. A Subdivision 

Application for re-plat of Stonebrook Estates was submitted on January 18, 2022. Review of the 

site plan submitted with the subdivision application showed that the intended development 

exceeded maximum density standards allowed by the UDC.  

An Application for a Variance Request was submitted on January 18, 2022, to accommodate the 

project. This request was disapproved by this Board at its regular meeting of February 23, 2022. 

Since that time, the applicant has reduced the number of proposed dwelling units from 95 to 84 

and has requested that the case be brought back for reconsideration. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 23 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property is comprised of Lots 1 & 2 of the Stonebrook Estates Subdivision with a combined 

area of 2.861 acres. The property is zoned Urban Residential (UR) District, the residential district 

that allows for the highest possible residential densities in the City. UDC Section 3.201(C) allows 

a maximum of 21.55 dwelling units per acre for multifamily developments in this District. With 

this density, a maximum of 62 dwelling units are allowed on the 2.861 acre area proposed. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

ERICA EDITH CANALES  Page 2 

This multifamily development originally planned 95 dwelling units on the subject property. Since 

the February 23 ZBA meeting, the applicant has indicated that the number of proposed units is 

now 84, an 11.6% reduction to the number of dwelling units. This is still 35.5% over the maximum 

density allowed by UDC in this District. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of this variance request. Urban Residential (UR) Zoning District 

held by the subject property allows the highest possible density of any residential district, a 

density intended only for areas with an urban character, such as around the downtown square.  

The applicant is proposing to exceed maximum density by over 35%. No extraordinary or 

exceptional conditions to justify this variance request have been established, as is required by 

UDC Section 14.404(D) for variance approval. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



S A
N

R A
U L

 A
V E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

E D W A R D  D R

DA
N

 D
R

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

N A U T I C A L  L N

GE
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

W  C A N T O N  R D

P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

S A N
A L E J A N D R O  S T

S A N
G A B R I E L  S T

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V ES JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

BO
N

N
IE

DR

J O H N  A V E

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N
SU

M
M

ER
FI

EL
D

 D
R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



-02

-07

T2100-00-274-0014-

14

15

4

3

2

1

SUBD

BREWER

175.57'

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

ENCHANTED OAKS SUBD.
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

RINCON DE LAS FUENTES

35.0'

35.0'

38'
38'

38'
38'

38'
38'

39.0'
39.0'

39.0'

39.0'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0'
32.0'

32.0'

50.0'

35.
0'

50.0'

50.0'

40.0'
40.0'

38.0'

35.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0' 32.0'

39.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

37

46
4544

4342
41

40
39

38
36

3534
333231

30292827
26

25 24 23 22

21
20

19
18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

7
6

5

43
21

PH
. 1

PH. 2

PH
. 3

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

1110

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

-00

-00

-05

-03

-12

-12

-13

-00

M265
0-0

0-0
01-

000
7-

-10

6
-00

-17
-03

-00

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

1615
14

13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

PLAZA
BUSINESS 
EDINBURG 

151413127 8 9 1011

LOT 1

VA
LL

E D
E L

AS
 FU

EN
TE

S

16

15

14

13

12

11

10
9 8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

CANTON BUS. CENTER

1
2
3
4

22

21

6
7

9
10
11
12

8

20

19

17

16

18

5

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 14
15 13

SU
BD

. P
H.

 1
RI

O 
VE

RD
E

RIO VERDE

SUBD. PH. 2

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

K2400-00-000-0008-

-02 -04

-08

M2650-00-001-0004-

-00
PEREZ
FLORENTINO

-16

-09

-05

-04

80 81
51

50

49
4847

92

83

93

82

55

54
53

52

797877

46454443

74
75

424140

76

90 9189

86 85 8473
72

71

87

88

95 94

59

58

57
56

61 60

98 97 9669

68
67

99

66 64 63 6265

70

32

27

29

28

24
25
26

23

3130

19
20
21

22

1
2

16

17
18 3

4
5

12
13

14 7
8
9

11

15 6

37

36

34
35

33

38
39

10

1

2

3

4

9

8

7

6

5

10

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II

ST
RO

NG
 SU

BD1

2

3

4

5

6

76

5

4 3 2 1

61

77

78

79

80

73

74

75

76

72

71

70

69

63
64

56

57

58
59
60

62

68

67

66
65

55
54

53
52

51
50
49
48
47

GA
RD

EN
IA 

SU
BD

.

17181920

98

107

116

125

134

143

152

161

WE
ST

 C
AN

TO
N 

ES
TA

TE
S

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

SO
UT

HW
ES

T E
ST

AT
ES 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 WI
ND

 R
OS

E E
ST

AT
ES

1

25

13 14

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

8 VILL
A LA

S FUENTES

19

10 11 12

13

14

15

16

17

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

22 23
21

20

19

18

2345678

ME
AD

OW
 BR

EE
ZE

 SU
BD

1 29

2 28

3 27

4 26

5 25

6 24

7 23

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

E.C
.I.S

.D
. S

UB
DI

VI
SI

ON
 N

o. 
3

AS
HL

EY
 ES

TA
TE

S

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

3

16
23

28

29

30 31

4567891011

12 13
14

15 16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24 25

26

27

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92

34 33 32 31

UNIT NO. 1

234567

8 9 10 11 12 13

20212223242526

27 28 29 30

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8

9
10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

24252627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99 100 101 102

103

104

110

111

112

113114115

116 117 118

PARK

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

27 30 31 34 35 38 3926

VAN-MARC TERRACE SUBD.

CITRUS ESTATES SUBD.

105

CITRUS ESTATES

8

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

47 46 45 44 43 42

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

. 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1011

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54

55

56

57
58
59

60

61

62
63

6465

66 70
71

72
73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1920
21

39

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

1 2 3

4
5

STONEBROOK

ESTATES

7

55

49
48

7978
64

66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

41 40 38

37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13

14

15

161718

20

21

22

23
2425

26

27

28
29

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

10

15
LOT 1

19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28

29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

49

51
52

50

53

55

57

56

54

58

59

60

1213 614 715 816 91011
20

21

1719

2

1

5
4

3

18

38

35

37 414039 42 48474544

70 6371 64656667686972

777675 8274 81807978 83

878889909192 8593 86

10496 103102101100999897

111112113114 107115 108116 109110117

127119 126125124123122121 128120

136137138139 132133134135 130

148147146145144143142 149141

131

36
43

140

118 129

106

95

73

62

84

105

46

61

150JACKSON HEIGHTS

94

S A
N

R A
U L

 A
V E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

E D W A R D  D R

DA
N

 D
R

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

N A U T I C A L  L N

GE
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

W  C A N T O N  R D

P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

S A N
A L E J A N D R O  S T

S A N
G A B R I E L  S T

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V ES JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

BO
N

N
IE

DR

J O H N  A V E

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N
SU

M
M

ER
FI

EL
D

 D
R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



-02

-07

-02

-03

T2100-00-274-0014-

14

15

4

3

2

1

SUBD

BREWER

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

ENCHANTED OAKS SUBD.
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

RINCON DE LAS FUENTES

35.0'

35.0'

38'
38'

38'
38'

38'
38'

39.0'
39.0'

39.0'

39.0'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0'
32.0'

32.0'

50.0'

35.
0'

50.0'

50.0'

40.0'
40.0'

38.0'

35.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0' 32.0'

39.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

37

46
4544

4342
41

40
39

38
36

3534
333231

30292827
26

25 24 23 22

21
20

19
18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

7
6

5

43
21

PH
. 1

PH. 2

PH
. 3

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

1110

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

-00

-00

-05

-03

-12

-12

-13

-00

M265
0-0

0-0
01-

000
7-

-10

6
-00

-17
-03

-00

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

15

14

13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

PLAZA
BUSINESS 
EDINBURG 

151413129 1011

LOT 1

VA
LL

E D
E L

AS
 FU

EN
TE

S

16

15

14

13

12

11

10
9 8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

CANTON BUS. CENTER
1
2
3
4

22

21

6
7

9
10
11
12

8

20

19

17

16

18

5

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 15 13

SU
BD

. P
H.

 1
RI

O 
VE

RD
E

RIO VERDE

SUBD. PH. 2

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

K2400-00-000-0008-

-02 -04

-08

-03
RODRIGUEZ

-00
PEREZ
FLORENTINO

-16

-09

-05

-04

80 81
51

50

49
4847

92

83

93

82

55

54
53

52

797877

46454443

74
75

424140

76

90 9189

86 85 8473
72

71

87

88

95 94

59

58

57
56

61 60

98 97 9669

68
67

99

66 64 63 6265

70

32

27

29

28

24
25
26

23

3130

19
20
21

22

1
2

16

17
18 3

4
5

12
13

14 7
8
9

11

15 6

37

36

34
35

33

38
39

10

1

2

3

4

9

8

7

6

5

10

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II

ST
RO

NG
 SU

BD1

2

3

4

5

6

76

5

4 3 2 1

61

77

78

79

80

73

74

75

76

72

71

70

69

63
64

56

57

58
59

60

62

68

67

66
65

55
54

53
52

51
50
49
48
47
46

GA
RD

EN
IA 

SU
BD

.

17181920

98

107

116

125

134

143

152

161

WE
ST

 C
AN

TO
N 

ES
TA

TE
S

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

SO
UT

HW
ES

T E
ST

AT
ES 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 WI
ND

 R
OS

E E
ST

AT
ES

1

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

8 VILL
A LA

S FUENTES

19

10 11 12

13

14

15

16

17

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

22 23
21

20

19

18

2345678

ME
AD

OW
 BR

EE
ZE

 SU
BD

1 29

2 28

3 27

4 26

5 25

6 24

7 23

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

E.C
.I.S

.D
. S

UB
DI

VI
SI

ON
 N

o. 
3

AS
HL

EY
 ES

TA
TE

S

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

3

16
123

28

29

30 31

32

33

4567891011

12 13
14

15 16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24 25

26

27

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92

34 33 32 31

AU
ST

IN
 TE

RR
AC

E

112

UNIT NO. 1

234567

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

20212223242526

27 28 29 30

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8

9
10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

24252627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99 100 101 102

103

104

110

111

112

113114115

116 117 118

PARK

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

27 30 31 34 35 38 39 4225 26

VAN-MARC TERRACE SUBD.

CITRUS ESTATES SUBD.

105

109

CITRUS ESTATES

8

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

47 46 45 44 43 42

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

. 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1011

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54

55

56

57
58
59

60

61

62
63

6465

66

67 69

70
71

72
73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1920

21

39

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

1 2 3

4
5

STONEBROOK

ESTATES

7

55

49
48

7978
64

66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

41 40 38

37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13

14

15

16171819

20

21

22

23
2425

26

27

28
29

30313233

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

10

15
LOT 1

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

49

51
52

50

53

55

57

56

54

58

59

60

1213 614 715 816 91011
20

21

1719

2

1

5
4

3

18

38

35

37 414039 42 48474544

70 6371 64656667686972

777675 8274 81807978 83

878889909192 8593 86

10496 103102101100999897

111112113114 107115 108116 109110117

127119 126125124123122121 128120

136137138139 132133134135 130

148147146145144143142 149141

131

36
43

140

118 129

106

95

73

62

84

105

46

61

150JACKSON HEIGHTS

94

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

E D W A R D  D R

SA
N 

R
AU

L 
AV

E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

BO
N

N
IE

DR

DA
N

 D
R

G E
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

S A N
M A N U E L  S T P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

W  C A N T O N  R D

S JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V E

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

J O H N  A V E

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

SU
M

M
E R

F I
E L

D
 D

R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS



dcolina
Typewritten Text
UDC Sec. 3.201(C)

dcolina
Typewritten Text
2002-2008 Brandi Lane

dcolina
Typewritten Text
Stonebrook



dcolina
Polygon







Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022

ERICA EDITH CANALES



  

Variance Request 

 

PONGORGV HOLDINGS LLC  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: March 18, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7B 

Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 12.301(A)(4), On Premise 

Signs, Free Standing Sign, being Lot 2, West Meadows Plaza Subdivision, located at 3021 West 

Freddy Gonzalez Drive, as requested by PongoRGV Holdings LLC 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) to place a 

freestanding commercial sign in a City of Edinburg utility easement. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located at the corner of West Freddy Gonzalez Drive and South McColl Road, and 

is zoned Commercial General District. Adjacent zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) 

and Commercial General (CG) Districts to the north, Agriculture (AG) and Commercial General 

(CG) Districts to the south, and Commercial General (CG) District to the east and west. Adjacent 

land uses are commercial, residential, and vacant land. 

Background and History 

The property is part of the West Meadows Plaza Subdivision, recorded on December 28, 2010. 

The applicant received variances for sign height and area requirements by the City Council in 

2019. The sign now proposed on Freddy Gonzalez Road would be located approximately 16.3 ft. 

into a 20 ft. utility easement belonging to the City of Edinburg. The sign would be approximately 

4 ft. from a 15-inch sewer line. Multiple discussions and meetings have been held with City staff 

since this time. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 27 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property has an “L” shape around the true corner of these roads with 250 ft. of frontage on 

Freddy Gonzalez Drive and 190 ft. of frontage on South McColl Road for a lot area of 

approximately 3.62 acres. A site plan submitted by the applicant shows a proposed sign located 

16.3 ft. into a City of Edinburg utility easement along West Freddy Gonzalez Drive. UDC Section 

12.301(A)(4) prohibits free standing signs from overhanging into a public ROW or being placed in 

a utility easement. However, placement of the sign outside of the utility easement would 

overhang the parking lot, creating an unsafe conditions for emergency vehicles. 

 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

PONGORGV HOLDINGS LLC  Page 2 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of this variance request with conditions. The inability to overhang 

either parking area or ROW has created an exceptional circumstance in this case. This condition 

has not resulted from the actions of the applicant, and literal interpretation of the UDC would 

deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other residents of the district in which the 

property is located. Staff recommends that approval be subject to the signing of a Hold Harmless 

Agreement between the applicant and the City. This agreement was proposed by the applicant, 

and City Engineering and Utilities Departments have stated that proposed placement of this sign 

would be acceptable with an agreement of this type in place. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



E A S Y
S TS 

M
C

C
O

LL
 R

D

M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

F O
R T

H O
O

D  
AV

E

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

SA
N 

R
AU

L 
AV

E

CH
A

N
C

E 
D

R

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

M
O

N
S E

R A
T

D R

C A M D E N  D R

R I N G O L D  C I R

DA
RT

M
O

UT
H 

AV
E

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

I N E Z  S T

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E

SA
N 

G
U

IL
LE

RM
O

AV
E

Z O E  A V E

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

R E G E N C Y  D R

P R E S I D I O  D R

H E B  A L L E Y

B R I G H T W O O D  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

H E D F E L T  D R

S C O T T L A N D  D R

PA G E  A V E

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

L O N D O N  D R

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 D

R
E A

S Y
 S

T

F O R T  B R O W N  A V E

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICHARD DAVIDSON / PONGO RGV HOLDINGS, LLC.

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



-20

-17

-15

-14

-00

-04

THOMPSON
VILLAGE

BR
OW

NW
OO

D
SU

BD
45

.00
'

25
.0'7

65
43
2

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

90.0'125
.0'

1

SUBD

McCOLL

AUTO
ZONE

COMM. PLAZA
FRED DY GONZALEZ

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

-15
-00

1

525150494847464544

43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34
33
32

313029282726252423222120

19
18
17
16
15

14
13

12
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

PH. 1

PH. 2

24
23

22
21

20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
121110987654321

98
.00

'

88
.00

98
.00

'

98
.00

'
96

.70
'

96
.70

'

96
.70

'
96

.70
'

52.00'

96
.70

'
96

.70
'

52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'
62.98'

86
.70

'
87

.74
'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

96
.70

'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

98
.00

'

49.83'

-11-01-09-08-02-00-03

-00-01

-02

-01-01

-02

-04

-06
-07

-15

-16

-12

T2100-00-275-0002-
2

DE LA VINA ELEM.

PLAZA

MIDLANDS

LOT 1

JACKSON ROAD SCHOOL

BUSINESS PLAZA

THE BOARDWALK
19

50.50'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'

140.00'

140.00'

52.00' 47.00'52.00'52.00'

52.00'52.00' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00'63.82' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00'

33
.22

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

33
.22

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

96
.70

' 84.00'

84.00'

57
.80

'

57
.80

'

52.00'

52.00'

74.00'

57
.80

'

76.82'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

72
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

72
.00

'

72
.24

'
72

.00
'

140.00'

140.00'

53.82'

97
.63

'

97
.54

'

52.00' 52.00'

97
.45

'

52.00'

97
.36

'

52.00'

97
.27

'

97
.18

'

52.00'

97
.09

'

97
.00

'

52.00'

96
.90

'

52.00'

96
.81

'

52.00'

96
.72

'

76.82'

96
.59

'

86
.70

'

57
.80

'

74.00'

67
.80

'
67

.80
'

52.00'

47.00'

47.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.98'

21

20

181716151413

121110987654321

BLK 1
BLK 4

BLK 2HIGHLAND RIDGE SUBD.

DO
UB

LE
"O

"

SU
BD

.

21

WEST MEADOWS SUBD.
16
17
18

19

20

18

11
12
13
14

6
7
8
9

10

21

22

23

24

55

1
2
3
425

26
41

42

27

5

LOT 1

15

1715 161412 13

9

10
11

575859

5452 53

606162

5149 50

40

43

39

44464748

35 36 37 38

45

7

8

5

6

3

4

1

2

1713 14 15 168 9 10 114 5 6 7 121 2 3

293031323334 28

56

No.1
0TEX-MART 

COMMERCIAL
HEDFELT 

151413127 8 9 1011
2 3 4 5 6
1

NEWCASTLE

24
23

321

CO
PP

ER
FIE

LD
SU

BD
.

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

T2100-00-275-0013-

T2100-00-275-0012-

T2100-00-275-0011-

T2100-00-275-0007-

T2100-00-275-0001-

T2100-00-275-0003-

T2100-00-276-0015-

-12

-05

-00

-00

-11
-09

-05

-04

-09-06

-08

-07

-10

-01-03

-02

-10

-02

-07

-01

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

30

29

1

MO
NM

AC
KR

OA
D

SPRAGUE STREET

FREDDY GONZALEZ

61

73

74

75
76

72

71

70
69

63
64

56

57
58
59

60

62

68

67
66
65

55
54

53

52

51
50
49
48
47
46
45

THE MIDLANDS

21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
12

4622

47

29

30 31 32 4

23
24
25
26
27
28

45 44 43 42

41
4048
3949

3837363534

33 1 2 3

11
10

9
8
7

6

5

15

6

14 13 12 111617181920

7 8 9 1054321

BLOCK II

BLOCK I

WEST MEADOWS

1

2
3
4
5
6

4

3

2

1

48495051

41 42 43 44 45 46 47

38

39

40

BL
OC

K
1

10987654321

SPANISH OAKS

14 9 8

7

6

5

13

1

12

2

11

3

10

4

7576777879808182838485868788

1021011009998979695949392919089

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

106 105 104 103113 112 111 110 109 108 107117 116 115 114

129 130 131 132122 123 124 125 126 127 128118 119 120 121

12

12

66

65

64

63

62

61

56 57 58 59 60

51 52 53 54 55

40 41 42 4333 34 35 36 37 38 39

44 45 46 47 48 49 50

VICTORIA HEIGHTS
29

21

12

1

30

22

31

23

32

24 25 26 27 28

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 PRESIDIO SUBD.

3C
4D
5E
6F
7G

8H
9I

10J
11K

1A
2B

68

31 21

20

66

51

50

41

40
67

1

30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22

49

48

47

52

65

53

64

54

63

55

62

56

61

57

60

58

59

39

42

38

43

37

44

36

45

35

46

343332

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

16

7 8 9 10 11

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

10-A

9-A

8-A

7-A

6-A

5-A

4-A

3-A

2-A

1-A

12131415

16

17 18 19

54 1
53
52
51
50

55
56

49
48
47
46

57
58
59
60

2 3 4 5

86
85

6
7
8
984

83
82
81

10
11
12
13

62
63

67

42

44
45

43

61

64

40
41

39

65

66

38
37
36
35

68
69
70
71

34

33 32 31

17

80
79
78

15
14

16

77
76

18
19
20

75
74

73
72

21

2930 28 27

1

2
3

11
12
13

14

15

16171819

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
29

30313233

3435363738394041
42
43
44

PARK PLACE ESTATES

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

7

10

15
LOT 1

A
1 2 3 4 5 6

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28

29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

BOND & BOND SUB.
1

2

GET-N
-GO 

1

SUBD.

3

6

11

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

12

5

13

WEST MEADOWS PLAZA
LOT 3

LOT 2

456789101112

8077767574727170

67 66 65 62 61 58 57 56 54

4342413833

1

18 13

25

52
51

50

46

26

47

192021
22
23
24

27

31 34 35 39 40 44 45

2

3

141517

28
29
30

36 "C
" 37 48

596064

73 7978 82

53

69

55

68

16

32 49

63

81

CO
MM

ON
 LO

T "
B"

LO
T "

A"

50.00'

46.46'38.83'

51.00'

37.75'

13
2.6

5'

37.75'

51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

12
6.9

8'

129
.89

'

119.71'

146.17'

75.75'100.00'52.00'51.00'51.00'

90
.29

'

13
3.0

0'

65
.00

'
10

5.2
0'

70
.16

'

13
2.6

3'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

11
7.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

49.00'

79
.74

' 13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

11
7.6

5'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.3

6'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'49.00'

13
2.4

9'

57.00'64.00'

13
2.3

6'

37.75'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

11
7.6

5'

52.75'

13
2.6

5'

125.00'

45
.00

'
36

.37
'

35
.00

'

85.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

52.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

110.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

50.00'

13
2.6

5'

50.00'

50.00'50.00'

12
3.0

6'

50.00'

13
2.6

5'

143
.80

'

50.00'114.25'

12
3.0

6'

126.40'

55
.00

'

58.00'

127.25'

126.40'

33
.33

'

127.25'

55
.00

'

127.25'

127.25'

55
.00

'

127.25'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

127.25'

52
.00

'

127.25'

52
.00

'

126.38'

52
.00

'

127.25'

114.37'

52
.00

'

126.38'

100.99'

52
.00

'

55
.17

'
35

.15
'

100.00'

52
.00

'
99

.96
'

100.99'

35
.15

'

51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'54.25'100.00'

10
5.6

3'

100.00'

13
3.0

9'

52.00'

13
3.1

8'

13
3.0

9'

52.00'

13
3.2

7'

13
3.1

8'

52.00'52.00'

13
3.3

6'13
3.2

7'

33.07'

13
3.4

9'

51.00'70.00'

13
3.6

6'

13
3.5

7'

13
3.7

5'

13
3.6

6'

46.58'

13
3.8

4'

13
3.7

5'

51.00'

13
3.9

3'

13
3.8

4'

51.00'

13
4.0

2'

13
3.9

3'

51.00'

13
4.1

1'

13
4.0

2'

51.00'

13
4.2

0'

13
4.1

1'

51.00'

13
4.2

9'

13
4.2

0'

51.00'

13
4.3

8'

13
4.2

9'

51.00'51.00'

12
8.9

1'

13
4.3

8'

136
.37

'

51.00'

119.83'

35
.00

'

137.99'

36
.48

'
45

.00
'

125.00'

70
.00

'

119.83'

85.00'

92
.42

'

125.00'

CAMDEN VILLAGE

LOT 1

A ATTIC X SUBDIVISION

E A S Y
S TS 

M
C

C
O

LL
 R

D

M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

F O
R T

H O
O

D  
AV

E

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

SA
N 

R
AU

L 
AV

E

CH
A

N
C

E 
D

R

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

M
O

N
S E

R A
T

D R

C A M D E N  D R

R I N G O L D  C I R

DA
RT

M
O

UT
H 

AV
E

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

I N E Z  S T

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E

SA
N 

G
U

IL
LE

RM
O

AV
E

Z O E  A V E

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

R E G E N C Y  D R

P R E S I D I O  D R

H E B  A L L E Y

B R I G H T W O O D  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

H E D F E L T  D R

S C O T T L A N D  D R

PA G E  A V E

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

L O N D O N  D R

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 D

R
E A

S Y
 S

T

F O R T  B R O W N  A V E

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICHARD DAVIDSON / PONGO RGV HOLDINGS, LLC.

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



-20

-17

-15

-14

-00

-04

THOMPSON
VILLAGE

BR
OW

NW
OO

D
SU

BD
45

.00
'

25
.0'7

65
43
2

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

90.0'125
.0'

1

SUBD

McCOLL

AUTO
ZONE

COMM. PLAZA
FRED DY GONZALEZ

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

-15
-00

1

525150494847464544

43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34
33
32

313029282726252423222120

19
18
17
16
15

14
13

12
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

PH. 1

PH. 2

24
23

22
21

20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
121110987654321

98
.00

'

88
.00

98
.00

'

98
.00

'
96

.70
'

96
.70

'

96
.70

'
96

.70
'

52.00'

96
.70

'
96

.70
'

52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'
62.98'

86
.70

'
87

.74
'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

96
.70

'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

98
.00

'

49.83'

-11-01-09-08-02-00-03

-00-01

-02

-01-01

-02

-04

-06
-07

-15

-16

-12

T2100-00-275-0002-
2

DE LA VINA ELEM.

PLAZA

MIDLANDS

LOT 1

JACKSON ROAD SCHOOL

BUSINESS PLAZA

THE BOARDWALK
19

50.50'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'

140.00'

140.00'

52.00' 47.00'52.00'52.00'

52.00'52.00' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00'63.82' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00' 52.00'

33
.22

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

33
.22

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

96
.70

' 84.00'

84.00'

57
.80

'

57
.80

'

52.00'

52.00'

74.00'

57
.80

'

76.82'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

72
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

72
.00

'

72
.24

'
72

.00
'

140.00'

140.00'

53.82'

97
.63

'

97
.54

'

52.00' 52.00'

97
.45

'

52.00'

97
.36

'

52.00'

97
.27

'

97
.18

'

52.00'

97
.09

'

97
.00

'

52.00'

96
.90

'

52.00'

96
.81

'

52.00'

96
.72

'

76.82'

96
.59

'

86
.70

'

57
.80

'

74.00'

67
.80

'
67

.80
'

52.00'

47.00'

47.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.00'

52.98'

21

20

181716151413

121110987654321

BLK 1
BLK 4

BLK 2HIGHLAND RIDGE SUBD.

DO
UB

LE
"O

"

SU
BD

.

21

WEST MEADOWS SUBD.
16
17
18

19

20

18

11
12
13
14

6
7
8
9

10

21

22

23

24

55

1
2
3
425

26
41

42

27

5

LOT 1

15

1715 161412 13

9

10
11

575859

5452 53

606162

5149 50

40

43

39

44464748

35 36 37 38

45

7

8

5

6

3

4

1

2

1713 14 15 168 9 10 114 5 6 7 121 2 3

293031323334 28

56

No.1
0TEX-MART 

COMMERCIAL
HEDFELT 

151413127 8 9 1011
2 3 4 5 6
1

NEWCASTLE

24
23

321

CO
PP

ER
FIE

LD
SU

BD
.

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

T2100-00-275-0013-

T2100-00-275-0012-

T2100-00-275-0011-

T2100-00-275-0007-

T2100-00-275-0001-

T2100-00-275-0003-

T2100-00-276-0015-

-12

-05

-00

-00

-11
-09

-05

-04

-09-06

-08

-07

-10

-01-03

-02

-10

-02

-07

-01

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

30

29

1

MO
NM

AC
KR

OA
D

SPRAGUE STREET

FREDDY GONZALEZ

61

73

74

75
76

72

71

70
69

63
64

56

57
58
59

60

62

68

67
66
65

55
54

53

52

51
50
49
48
47
46
45

THE MIDLANDS

21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
12

4622

47

29

30 31 32 4

23
24
25
26
27
28

45 44 43 42

41
4048
3949

3837363534

33 1 2 3

11
10

9
8
7

6

5

15

6

14 13 12 111617181920

7 8 9 1054321

BLOCK II

BLOCK I

WEST MEADOWS

1

2
3
4
5
6

4

3

2

1

48495051

41 42 43 44 45 46 47

38

39

40

BL
OC

K
1

10987654321

SPANISH OAKS

14 9 8

7

6

5

13

1

12

2

11

3

10

4

7576777879808182838485868788

1021011009998979695949392919089

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

106 105 104 103113 112 111 110 109 108 107117 116 115 114

129 130 131 132122 123 124 125 126 127 128118 119 120 121

12

12

66

65

64

63

62

61

56 57 58 59 60

51 52 53 54 55

40 41 42 4333 34 35 36 37 38 39

44 45 46 47 48 49 50

VICTORIA HEIGHTS
29

21

12

1

30

22

31

23

32

24 25 26 27 28

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 PRESIDIO SUBD.

3C
4D
5E
6F
7G

8H
9I

10J
11K

1A
2B

68

31 21

20

66

51

50

41

40
67

1

30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22

49

48

47

52

65

53

64

54

63

55

62

56

61

57

60

58

59

39

42

38

43

37

44

36

45

35

46

343332

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

16

7 8 9 10 11

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

10-A

9-A

8-A

7-A

6-A

5-A

4-A

3-A

2-A

1-A

12131415

16

17 18 19

54 1
53
52
51
50

55
56

49
48
47
46

57
58
59
60

2 3 4 5

86
85

6
7
8
984

83
82
81

10
11
12
13

62
63

67

42

44
45

43

61

64

40
41

39

65

66

38
37
36
35

68
69
70
71

34

33 32 31

17

80
79
78

15
14

16

77
76

18
19
20

75
74

73
72

21

2930 28 27

1

2
3

11
12
13

14

15

16171819

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
29

30313233

3435363738394041
42
43
44

PARK PLACE ESTATES

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

7

10

15
LOT 1

A
1 2 3 4 5 6

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28

29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

BOND & BOND SUB.
1

2

GET-N
-GO 

1

SUBD.

3

6

11

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

12

5

13

WEST MEADOWS PLAZA
LOT 3

LOT 2

456789101112

8077767574727170

67 66 65 62 61 58 57 56 54

4342413833

1

18 13

25

52
51

50

46

26

47

192021
22
23
24

27

31 34 35 39 40 44 45

2

3

141517

28
29
30

36 "C
" 37 48

596064

73 7978 82

53

69

55

68

16

32 49

63

81

CO
MM

ON
 LO

T "
B"

LO
T "

A"

50.00'

46.46'38.83'

51.00'

37.75'

13
2.6

5'

37.75'

51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

12
6.9

8'

129
.89

'

119.71'

146.17'

75.75'100.00'52.00'51.00'51.00'

90
.29

'

13
3.0

0'

65
.00

'
10

5.2
0'

70
.16

'

13
2.6

3'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

11
7.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

49.00'

79
.74

' 13
2.6

5'

57.00'

13
2.6

5'

11
7.6

5'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.3

6'

57.00'57.00'

13
2.6

5'

57.00'49.00'

13
2.4

9'

57.00'64.00'

13
2.3

6'

37.75'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

11
7.6

5'

52.75'

13
2.6

5'

125.00'

45
.00

'
36

.37
'

35
.00

'

85.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

52.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

51.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

110.00'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

13
2.6

5'

50.00'

13
2.6

5'

50.00'

50.00'50.00'

12
3.0

6'

50.00'

13
2.6

5'

143
.80

'

50.00'114.25'

12
3.0

6'

126.40'

55
.00

'

58.00'

127.25'

126.40'

33
.33

'

127.25'

55
.00

'

127.25'

127.25'

55
.00

'

127.25'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

127.25'

52
.00

'

127.25'

52
.00

'

126.38'

52
.00

'

127.25'

114.37'

52
.00

'

126.38'

100.99'

52
.00

'

55
.17

'
35

.15
'

100.00'

52
.00

'
99

.96
'

100.99'

35
.15

'

51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'51.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'54.25'100.00'

10
5.6

3'

100.00'

13
3.0

9'

52.00'

13
3.1

8'

13
3.0

9'

52.00'

13
3.2

7'

13
3.1

8'

52.00'52.00'

13
3.3

6'13
3.2

7'

33.07'

13
3.4

9'

51.00'70.00'

13
3.6

6'

13
3.5

7'

13
3.7

5'

13
3.6

6'

46.58'

13
3.8

4'

13
3.7

5'

51.00'

13
3.9

3'

13
3.8

4'

51.00'

13
4.0

2'

13
3.9

3'

51.00'

13
4.1

1'

13
4.0

2'

51.00'

13
4.2

0'

13
4.1

1'

51.00'

13
4.2

9'

13
4.2

0'

51.00'

13
4.3

8'

13
4.2

9'

51.00'51.00'

12
8.9

1'

13
4.3

8'

136
.37

'

51.00'

119.83'

35
.00

'

137.99'

36
.48

'
45

.00
'

125.00'

70
.00

'

119.83'

85.00'

92
.42

'

125.00'

CAMDEN VILLAGE

LOT 1

A ATTIC X SUBDIVISION

E A S Y
S TS 

M
C

C
O

LL
 R

D

M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

F O
R T

H O
O

D  
AV

E

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

SA
N 

R
AU

L 
AV

E

CH
A

N
C

E 
D

R

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

M
O

N
S E

R A
T

D R

C A M D E N  D R

R I N G O L D  C I R

DA
RT

M
O

UT
H 

AV
E

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

I N E Z  S T

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E

SA
N 

G
U

IL
LE

RM
O

AV
E

Z O E  A V E

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

R E G E N C Y  D R

P R E S I D I O  D R

H E B  A L L E Y

B R I G H T W O O D  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

H E D F E L T  D R

S C O T T L A N D  D R

PA G E  A V E

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

L O N D O N  D R

SU
M

M
ER

FI
EL

D
 D

R
E A

S Y
 S

T

F O R T  B R O W N  A V E

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAIL OUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICHARD DAVIDSON / PONGO RGV HOLDINGS, LLC.

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS



�����������	
�����
�������
����������������������	���	�����

Nature of Request: �_____�______��_________________________�_______________________  

 ���

�____________________________________________________________________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Property Description:  ����______________����	
�______________����������������_______��������____________�

Property Address:   ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Present Property Zoning:   ______________________________________________________________________ 

Person requesting Variance:   ___________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address:�  �____________________________________________________________________________
Street Address City/State Zip Code 

Phone No.  (Home):   ____________________  (Work):  ____________________ �(Cell): __�_________________ 

Owner’s Name:   _____________________________________________________________________________  

Mailing Address: ________________________________________________________________�____________ 

As owners or agents for the above described property, I (we) hereby request a hearing before the 
City of Edinburg Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

Signature:   _________________________________________________   Date:   __________________________  

Owner/Agent’s Name (Please Print):   ____________________________________________________________  

$450 Application Fee:   ___________________   Application Received by:  ______________________________  

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Application deadline:   _____________________   ZBA Hearing date:   _____________________  

� $40 ZBA Order Form- Make Check Payable to: Hidalgo County Clerk
� Submit survey, if applicable
� Reduced copy of site plan & 1 blue print, if applicable

________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________�__ ___________��
Street Address City/State Zip Code 

___________________
Receipt No. 

Planning & Zoning Department�
415 W. University Dr����
���������������������

!��"#����%�'*'

�+������,���-����2�3������������	�	
���������	������������

������

dinburg Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ ____________________

’ N (Pl P i )

Place pylon sign within City owned ROW along Freddy Gonzalez

2 easements exist in the area where our Pylon sign can be place. A 20' city owned ROW and a 10'
ROW owned by HCID#1. We would like to put the sign at the south edge of the City owned ROW

Richard Davidson

(956) 358-2269

PongoRGV Holdings LLC

March 18, 2022

Richard Davidson

2 West Meadows West Meadows Plaza

1501 - 1519 S McColl

PO Box 4752

McAllen Tx 78502PO Box 4752

CN - Commercial, Neighborhood







Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022 

PONGORGV HOLDINGS LLC - 3021 WEST FREDDY GONZALEZ DRIVE 



STATE OF TEXAS           §  
  
COUNTY OF HIDALGO    §  
  

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
 

THIS HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on this the ______ 
day of _______ 2022, by _____________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) and CITY OF EDINBURG, (hereinafter referred to as 
“City”), a municipal corporation of the State of Texas relating to City right of way property situated 
in the City of Edinburg, County of Hidalgo, State of Texas, which is depicted on the attached 
hereto marked Exhibit A and by this reference incorporated herein, (“Property”).  

 
WITNESSETH:  

WHEREAS, Applicant is a [COMMERCIAL DEVELOPER]; and 
WHEREAS, Applicants seeks to [PUT A SIGN IN THE CITY OF EDINBURG         
                       UTILITY EASMENT]; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Ordinance prohibits installation of a sign on any utility easement 
 
WHEREAS, Applicant has requested that the Zoning Board of Adjustments grant a 

variance to City Ordinance to allow Applicant to install a sign on a Utility      
Easement at the Property, as depicted in the attached  

 
WHEREAS, the City has required Applicant to apply for a variance through the process  
                       Required by City Ordinance and in addition to, but without promising  
                       Approval of such variance, requires that Applicant agree to the terms of this  
             Hold Harmless Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows:  
Applicant does hereby agree, bind, and obligate Applicant and Applicant’s heirs, successors, and 
assigns as follows: 
 

1. No other improvements. No other structures, buildings or other improvements shall be 
placed in, on, or along said right of way other than the specific signage requested by 
Applicant in connection with this agreement. 

 
2. No interference with City’s access to right of way. The City reserves all access rights to 

the right of way, including, without limitation, access to, across, along, under and upon the 
right of way, to enter upon such right of way at any time to engage in such activities as 
may be necessary, requisite, or appropriate in connection therewith, and to bring and 
operate such equipment thereupon as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the 
purposes for the right of way.  



 
3. No interference with City right of way use. The City reserves the right to use the surface 

of the right of way in any manner permitted by law, including, without limitation, the right 
to construct and maintain pavement, parking, sidewalks, curb-cuts, lighting systems, 
landscaping and fences. 

 
4. No City liability. The City and/or its agents shall be and will be released from any and all 

liability as a result of any damage to any of Applicant’s property, including the specific 
signage requested by Applicant in connection with this agreement, occasioned by and in 
reasonable exercise of Grantee's rights. 

 
5. Removal upon request. Any and all improvements, including the specific signage 

requested by Applicant in connection with this agreement, shall be removed upon City’s 
request within a reasonable time of such request. 

 
6. Conflict with Applicable Law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed so as to 

require the commission of any act contrary to law, and whenever there is any conflict 
between any provision of their Agreement and any present of future law, ordinance or 
administrative, executive or judicial regulation, order or decree, or amendment thereof, 
contrary to which the parties have no legal right to contract, the latter shall prevail, but in 
such event the affected provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be modified only 
to the extent necessary to bring them within the legal requirements and only during the 
times such conflict exists. 

 
7. No Waiver. No waiver by any party hereto of any breach of any provision of the 

Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the 
same or any other provision hereof. 
 

8. Other Applicable Law. City and Applicant acknowledge and agree that the scope of this 
Agreement is limited to the specific signage requested by Applicant in connection with this 
agreement. Applicant acknowledges and agrees that in no way does the City grant any 
permissions or opinions regarding the future right or development of the City’s right of 
way. Applicant acknowledges and agrees to follow all other applicable requirements of the 
City’s Unified Development Code and State law as applicable. 

 
9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 

hereto, and each party acknowledges that neither has made (either directly or through any 
agent or representative) any representation or agreement in connection with this Agreement 
not specifically set forth herein. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by 
agreement in writing executed by the Owner and City and not otherwise. 

 
10. Texas Law to Apply. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are 
performable in Hidalgo County, Texas. The parties hereby consent to personal jurisdiction 
in the City of Edinburg, the County of Hidalgo, and in the State of Texas. 
 



11. Dispute Resolution. For any controversy, claim, or dispute arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement, Applicant and City shall first attempt to informally resolve such controversy, 
claim, or dispute. Thereafter, Applicant and City shall submit in good faith to mediation 
before commencing a legal proceeding. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees and costs, in seeking to enforce the terms of this Agreement. 

 
12. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

hereto and their respective elected officials, officers, employees, legal representatives, 
successors, and assigns where permitted by this Agreement. 

 
13. Headings. The headings and captions contained in this Agreement are solely for 

convenience reference and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or interpretation of 
any provision or paragraph hereof. 

 
14. Gender and Number. All pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, 

whether used in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, and singular shall include the 
plural whenever and so often as may be appropriate. 

 
15. Immunities: Nothing in this Agreement is intended to and City does not hereby waive, 

release or relinquish any right to assert any of the defenses City enjoys by virtue of the 
state or federal constitution, laws, rules or regulations, and any sovereign, official or 
qualified immunity available to City as to any claim or action of any person, entity, or 
individual against City. 
 

16. Owner and HOA acknowledge having carefully read and reviewed this Agreement, and 
Owner and HOA represent that each fully understands and voluntarily executes the same. 

 
It is further stipulated and agreed that the laws of the State of Texas shall control in the 

construction of this instrument.  

 
WITNESS THE HANDS OF THE PARTIES effective as of the day and year first written 
above.          

 
APPLICANT: 
 
BY: ________________________________ 

PONGORGV LLC HOLDINGS  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



THE STATE OF TEXAS  §  
 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO  §  
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of ______, 2022, by 

[____________] on her own behalf.  
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the _________ day of  

______, 2021.  
 

______________________________________  
                                   Notary Public, State of Texas  

 
 
 
        CITY OF EDINBURG     
       
        By:________________________________ 
        Myra L. Ayala, Interim City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
         OMAR OCHOA LAW FIRM, P.C. 
 
________________________ By:____________________________ 
, Interim City Secretary     Omar Ochoa, City Attorney 
 



Variance Request

MOSES T. ASHUKEM Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: March 15, 2022

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7C 
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301(D)(9), Fences Facing or 

Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 12, Los Lagos Phase I Subdivision, located at 2320 Arlina Drive, as 

requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses T. Ashukem 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

2.301(D)(9), to construct a fence along the rear property line of a residential lot abutting a golf 

course. Fences along a golf course are prohibited by the aforementioned section of the UDC. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located on the east side of Arlina Drive, towards the end of a winding cul-de-sac 

approximately ¼ mile southeast of Los Lagos Drive, and is zoned Suburban Residential (S) District. 

Adjacent zoning is Suburban Residential (S) District in all directions. The Los Lagos Golf Course is 

located immediately west of the subject property.  

Background and History 

The property is part of the Los Lagos Subdivision, Phase I, recorded on April 16, 2002. The 

applicant is proposing to construct a fence approximately 198.53 ft. along the rear property line. 

The applicant submitted a building permit application for a fence on December 1, 2021. Review 

of the plans showed the subject property along the perimeter of the Los Lagos Golf Course. After 

discussion with staff, the applicant submitted a Variance Request on February 28, 2022, to 

accommodate the project. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 21 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
The property has an irregular shape, being one of four lots along the end of the Arlina Drive cul-

de-sac. The lot has approximately 161.48 ft. of frontage on Arlina Drive and a total lot area of 

25,271.70 sq. ft. Staff review of a building permit application for a fence identified the property 

as abutting the Los Lagos Golf Course. UDC Section 2.301(D)(9) prohibits any fence facing or 

abutting a golf course. Variance is required for the applicant to proceed with the project. 

The permit indicated that the proposed fence would be of a wrought iron type. The fence would 

extend along the rear property line, approximately 198.53 ft., bordering a portion of the Los 

Lagos Golf Course. The basis for the request is the privacy and security of the applicant’s family. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report

MOSES T. ASHUKEM Page 2

Recommendation
Staff recommends compliance with UDC requirements. Similar variances have been granted in 

the Los Lagos development. Most recent approval was granted at the Zoning Board of 

Adjustment meeting of February 23, 2022, for a property located in the nearby Los Lagos Phase 

III Subdivision.  This Ordinance is being reviewed as part of the UDC update. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA 
Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning 



L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

E  C A N T O N  R D

LI
NK

S 
D

R

L A G O  TA H O E

M
O

N
TE

G
UE

 S
T

LI
NK

S
DR

M A C Q U A R I E  D
RLU D D E N

D R

EA
G

LE
 L

AN
D I

N
G

 D
R

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

S E T O N  S
T

LA
G

O
HU

RO
N

P R E S T W I C K  S T

PA T T E R S O N  S T

LAG O  D
E LT

O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

F E A T H E R I E  S T

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA / LOS LAGOS PHASE I, LOT 12

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE



A1800-00-059-0014-

15
14

-18

-15 -10 -07
-05

A1
80

0-0
0-0

59
-00

15

-02

-03

-06

-16
-15 -13 -09

-08

-07

-06

-05
-04

-15

-08

-11

-10

-13
-12

-06

-05

-04 -04

-03

-02

-02
-05

-03

-01

LOS LAGOS

PH. 3
PH. 1

PH. 4

LOS LAGOS

15
5

11
3

11
211111
0

10
9

10
8

10
7

12
5

32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12

11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

19
4

17
5

15
6

12
6

11
4

19
3

17
4

15
4

130

12
4

10
5

98

86

19
2

19
1

19
0

18
9

18
8

18
7

18
6

18
5

18
4

18
3

18
2

18
1

18
0

17
917
8

177
176

17
3

17
2

17
1

17
0

16
9

16
8

16
7

16
6

16
5

16
4

16
3

16
2

16
1

16
0

15
9

158
157

89
88

87

85
84

83
82

81
80

79
78

77
76

75
74

73
72

71

50 49 48 47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33

3
2
1

706968
67

66
65

64
63

62
61

60
59

58
57 56 55 54 53 52 51

15
3

15
2

15
1

15
0

14
9

14
8

14
7

14
6

14
5

14
4

14
3

14
2

14
1

14
0

13
9

13
8137136

135
132134
131

133

129128
127

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
911
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

10
6

10
4

10
3

10
2

10
1

10
0

99

97969594

92
91

93

90

A1800-00-055-0001-00

PARCEL 2

1
2

3
4

5
6 7

8

88
89

90
91

87
86

85

84

81
82

83

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

79
78

75
74

71

72
73

76
77

80

92
93

94
95

96
97

98
99

100
101

70
69

68
67

66
65

64
63

21
22

23 24 25 26
27

28
29

37
36 35 34

33
32

31
30

38 39 40
41

42
43

44
45

51
50

49
48

47
46

21
9 22

0

221
222
223

224
102

103
104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

62
61

60
59

58
57 56

55
54
53
52

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

20
8

20
7

20
6

20
5

20
4

20
3

20
2

20
1

20
0

19
9

198 179
180197
181196
182195
183194
184193
185192
186191
187190
188189

13
7

13
6

13
5

13
4

13
3

13
2

13
1

13
0

12
9

12
8

12
7

12
6

12
5

12
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
911
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

11
4

11
3

11
2

9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2

1
35 36 37 38 39

49

48

47

46

45 44

43

42

41

40

LOS LAGOS COUNTRY CLUB 1
2

3

4

5
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

1   2

80
.0

0'

31

30
130 .00'

80
.0

0'29
130 .00'

80
.0

0'28
130 .00'

80
.0

0'27
130 .00'

80
.0

0'26
130 .00'

80
.0

0'25
130 .00'

80
.0

0'24
130 .00'

80
.0

0'23
130 .00'

80
.0

0'22
130 .00'

80
.0

0'21
130 .00'

80
.0

0'20

95
.0

0'

19

19
0.

00
'

125 .00'

80
.0

0'

80
.0

0'
80

.0
0'

80
.0

0'
80

.0
0'

80
.0

0'
80

.0
0'

80
.0

0'

100 .00'

70
.0

0'

70
.0

0'

119.2 9'

PH. B
PH. A

LUMEN SUBDIVISION51
52

53
54 55 56 57

58
59 60 61 62

63 64 65 66
67

68

69
70 71

72
73

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81

82

8384
8586

87888990919293949596979899100
101
102
103

104
105

106
107

108

109
110

111
112
113
114

115
116

117
118

119
120

121

1 2 3
4

5
67

8
9

10
11

12 13
14

15
16

17
19

20 21
22

23

44
45

46
47

48
49

50

L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

E  C A N T O N  R D

LI
NK

S 
D

R

L A G O  TA H O E

M
O

N
TE

G
UE

 S
T

LI
NK

S
DR

M A C Q U A R I E  D
RLU D D E N

D R

EA
G

LE
 L

AN
D I

N
G

 D
R

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

S E T O N  S
T

LA
G

O
HU

RO
N

P R E S T W I C K  S T

PA T T E R S O N  S T

LAG O  D
E LT

O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

F E A T H E R I E  S T

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA / LOS LAGOS PHASE I, LOT 12

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



A1800-00-059-0014-

15
14

-18

-15 -10 -07
-05

A1
80

0-0
0-0

59
-00

15

-02

-03

-06

-16
-15 -13 -09

-08

-07

-06

-05
-04

-15

-08

-11

-10

-13
-12

-06

-05

-04 -04

-03

-02

-02
-05

-03

-01

LOS LAGOS

PH. 3
PH. 1

PH. 4

LOS LAGOS

15
5

11
3

11
2

11111
0

10
9

10
8

10
7

12
5

32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

19
4

17
5

15
6

12
6

11
4

19
3

17
4

15
4

130

12
4

10
5

98

86

19
2

19
1

19
0

18
9

18
8

18
7

18
6

18
5

18
4

18
3

18
2

18
1

18
0

17
917
8

177
176

17
3

17
2

17
1

17
0

16
9

16
8

16
7

16
6

16
5

16
4

16
3

16
2

16
1

16
0

15
9

158
157

89
88

87

85
84

83
82

81
80

79
78

77
76

75
74

73
72

71

50 49 48 47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33

3
2
1

706968
67

66
65

64
63

62
61

60
59

58
57 56 55 54 53 52 51

15
3

15
2

15
1

15
0

14
9

14
8

14
7

14
6

14
5

14
4

14
3

14
2

14
1

14
0

13
9

13
8137136

135
132134
131

133

129128
127

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
611
5

10
6

10
4

10
3

10
2

10
1

10
0

99

97969594

92
91

93

90

A1800-00-055-0001-00

PARCEL 2

1
2

3
4

5
6 7

8

88
89

90
91

87
86

85

84

81
82

83

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

79
78

75
74

71

72
73

76
77

80

92
93

94
95

96
97

98
99

100
101

70
69

68
67

66
65

64
63

21
22

23 24 25 26
27

28
29

37
36 35 34

33
32

31
30

38 39 40
41

42
43

44
45

51
50

49
48

47
46

21
9 22

0

221
222
223

224
102

103
104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

62
61

60
59

58
57 56

55
54
53
52

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

20
8

20
7

20
6

20
5

20
4

20
3

20
2

20
1

20
0

19
9

198 179
180197
181196
182195
183194
184193
185192
186191
187190
188189

13
7

13
6

13
5

13
4

13
3

13
2

13
1

13
0

12
9

12
8

12
7

12
6

12
5

12
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
511
4

11
3

11
2

9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2

1
35 36 37 38 39

49

48

47

46

45 44

43

42

41

40

LOS LAGOS COUNTRY CLUB 1
2

3

4

5
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

1   2

80
.00

'

31

30
130.00 '

80
.00

'29
130.00 '

80
.00

'28
130.00 '

80
.00

'27
130.00 '

80
.00

'26
130.00 '

80
.00

'25
130.00 '

80
.00

'24
130.00 '

80
.00

'23
130.00 '

80
.00

'22
130.00 '

80
.00

'21
130.00 '

80
.00

'20

95
.00

'

19

19
0.0

0'

125.00 '

80
.00

'

80
.00

'
80

.00
'

80
.00

'
80

.00
'

80
.00

'
80

.00
'

80
.00

'

100.00 '

70
.00

'

70
.00

'

119.29'

PH. B
PH. A

LUMEN SUBDIVISION51
52

53
54 55 56 57

58
59 60

61 62
63 64 65 66

67
68

69
70 71

72
73

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81
82

8384
8586

87888990919293949596979899100
101
102
103

104
105

106
107

108

109
110

111
112
113

114
115

116
117

118
119

120
121

1 2 3
4

5
67

8
9

10
11

12 13
14

15
16

17
19

20 21
22

23

44
45

46
47

48
49

50

L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

E  C A N T O N  R D

LI
NK

S 
D

R

L A G O  T A H O E

M
O

N
TE

G
UE

 S
T

LI
NK

S
D R

M A C Q U A R I E
 D

RL U D D E N
D R

EA
G

LE
 L

A
N

D
I N

G
 D

R

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

S E T O N  S
T

LA
G

O
HU

R
O

N

P R E S T W I C K  S T

PA T T E R S O N  S T

LA G O  D
E L T O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

F E A T H E R I E  S T

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA / LOS LAGOS PHASE I, LOT 12

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION









Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022 

GLENDA GARCIA/MOSES T. ASHUKEM - 2320 ARLINA DRIVE 



  

Variance Request 

 

ALI FAMITAFRESHI  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: March 17, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7D 

Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.301, Single Family 

Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, Lot 56, Bentley Estates Subdivision, located at 4809 

Sheffield Street, as requested by Ali Famitafreshi 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

3.301 as it applies to single-family residential setbacks. The applicant is proposing to reduce the 

rear yard setback from 25 ft. to 13 ft. for construction of a residential home. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located on the west side of Sheffield Street, approximately 45 ft. south of 

Churchill Avenue, and is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District. Adjacent zoning 

is Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District to the north, south and east, and Commercial 

General (CG) District to the west. Surrounding land uses are single-family residential with vacant 

land to the west.  

Background and History 

The property is part of the Bentley Estates Subdivision, recorded on August 19, 2005. The 

applicant is proposing to construct a single-family home into the required rear yard setback. The 

applicant discussed proposed plans with City staff in February 2022. A site plan provided showed 

the primary structure approximately 12 ft. from the property line. Subsequently, the applicant 

submitted a Variance Request on February 18, 2022, to accommodate the project. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 25 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property has 80 ft. of frontage on Sheffield Street and a depth of 125 ft. for a total lot area 

of 10,000 sq. ft. The site plan submitted shows a residential structure with a total area of 5,989 

sq. ft. The floor plan has a large central courtyard that is open to the northern side yard. There is 

a 10 ft. utility easement along the rear of the property. Construction will take place 2 ft. clear of 

this easement. A 22 ft. private access alley exists west of the rear property line, and there is a 50 

ft. easement to the west of this private alley. The alley and easement create a buffer between 

the residential units and the vacant property to the west. 

The applicant indicated that he and his wife prefer the large central courtyard and additional 

living space instead of a large rear yard. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

ALI FAMITAFRESHI  Page 2 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends compliance with UDC requirements. No hardship as such exists to support the 

variance requested. There are at least two other properties in this subdivision that have received 

variances of this nature to required setbacks. For these cases, the Bentley Estates Homeowner’s 

Association requests that the property owner seek variance with the City of Edinburg before 

seeking approval from their board. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



P A S E O  D E L  P R A D O  S T

SH
EF

FI
EL

D
 S

T

BA
TT

EY
 S

T

O
XF

O
RD

 S
T

B R
I S

T O
L

S T

Z I M M E R M A N  S T

KI
LL

EB
R

EW
 S

T

Q
U I

L I
G

Y
S TKA

AT ST

A L
L I

S O
N

 S
T

Q
UI

L I
G

Y
S T

B AT T E Y
S T

AL
LI

SO
N

 S
T

W  A L B E R T A  R D

M A R T I N
D R

O L I V A  S T

V I C T O R I A  A V E

W O R T H I N G T O N
S T

N O R T H P O I N T  D R

C H U R C H I L L  A V EC H U R C H I L L
A V E

W  H A M P T O N  A V E

S 
M

C
CO

LL
 R

D

S  
J A

C
K S

O
N

 R
D

C O R N E R S T O N E  B LV D

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALI & DORA FAMITAFRESHI / BENTLEY ESTATES SUBDIVISION, LOT 56

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE



2-B

1

212019181716

15

14 13 12
1110 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

SUBD.
HEART HOSPITAL

CORNERSTONE

337.42'

22
5.4

9'

56 .57'
326.30 '

ST
ON

EW
OR

KS
 PL

AZ
A

347.34 '

344.86 '

343.62 '

345.80 '

342.38 '

341.14 '

357.25 '

354.78 '

353.54 '

352.30 '

348.82 '

348.58 '

356.02 '

351.06 '

364.29 '

363.68 '

363.00 '

362.28 '

361.40 '

359.48 '

358.40 '

360.48 '

365.26 '

364.81 '

60
.00

'

60
.05

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

24
25
26

20
21
22

19
18
17

23

16
15
14
1312
11
9
8
7
6
5
4

10

1

32

DEL PRADO BUSINESS PARK

876543

6

-02

-00 -02 -07-05-03-01

-08

-14

-00

-05

SUBD.

CORNER

JACKSON
4

3

2

1

2
3 4

BENTLEY ESTATES

20

48
34

112111110109108107106105

18

7574
73

72

70
6968

67

716665

979899100101102103104

9695949392919089

8182838485868788
80
79

78

77

7664
6362

61

60

59

58

57

56
55

54
53

52

51

50
49 47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40

39

38

37

36

33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

19
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
76
5
4
3
2

1

35

S5950-00-004-0006-

M2650-00-002-0003-

M2650-00-003-0001-00

L3
90

0-0
0-0

00
-00

57
-00

M2650-00-003-0008-

-12 -13

-08
-08

-09

1

RENO SUBD

3132 2930 2728

21 43 65

242526

987

JACKSON PALMS DEVELOPMENT

16 17 18 19

20

2122232425

26272829

30

31

PH. II 

NORTHPOINT SUBDIVISION10

11

12131415

987
654321

6

5

7

4

8

3

9

2
1

BORDERLAND RETREAT
14 13 12 23 24

25
26
27

28 29

77
76
75
74
73

8578

96

5

72 69 68 67

50

33 32 31

11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

79 80 81 82 83 84

95 94 93 92 91 90

15
86 14
87 13
88 12
89 11

4 3 2 1

678910

71 70

4948474645

66

51

65

52

64

53

63

54

62

55

61

56

60

57

59

58 35 36 37 38 39

3034

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34 39 40

4138
4237
4336
4435 40414243444546

53
52
51
50
49
48

47

BLOCK 2BLOCK 1 65432110987654321

LOT 2, BLOCK 4

LOT 1, BLOCK 4

2423222120191817161514
1A

1
2
3
4
5

BL
OC

K 9

6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15

BLOCK 13

BLOCK 12

LOT 2
LOT 1, BLOCK 7

BL
OC

K 6

1
2
3
4
5
6

BL
OC

K 5

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

"D"LOT

LO
T "

F"
LO

T "
G"

LOT"B"

"E"LOT

16

18

1920

1721

15

14

129

13
118 10

222324252627

LOT"A"

LOT  1

6 74 5

"C"LOT

2 3

74

75

76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89 59

60

CORNERSTO
NE MEDICAL P

ARKLOT 1, BLOCK 14 LOT 1, BLOCK 10 LOT 1, BLOCK 11

8

1

Mc
CO

LL
 R

D.
 - F

.M
. 2

06
1

JA
CK

SO
N 

RO
AD

 - F
.M

. 3
36

2

TRENTON ROAD

3

AL
EX

IS-
MA

RY
-JO

-S
AR

AH
SU

BD
IVI

SIO
N

1

-02

11A

12A

13
A

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E

ME
DI

CA
L P

AR
K 

PH
 III

RE
SU

B 
LO

TS
 1-

13
 B

LK
 8

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E

COSMOPOLITAN
LOT 1

CHRISTOPHER M. JO
B

LOT 1

MAR
VA

L P
LA

ZA
 SU

BD
.

1AM
MEN

DE
D

P A S E O  D E L  P R A D O  S T

SH
EF

FI
EL

D
 S

T

BA
TT

EY
 S

T

O
XF

O
R

D
 S

T

B R
I S

T O
L

S T

Z I M M E R M A N  S T

KI
LL

EB
RE

W
 S

T

Q
U I

L I
G

Y
S TKA

AT ST

A L
L I

S O
N

 S
T

Q
UI

L I
G

Y
S T

B AT T E Y
S T

AL
LI

SO
N

 S
T

W  A L B E R T A  R D

M A R T I N
D R

O L I V A  S T

V I C T O R I A  A V E

W O R T H I N G T O N
S T

N O R T H P O I N T  D R

C H U R C H I L L  A V EC H U R C H I L L
A V E

W  H A M P T O N  A V E

S 
M

C
CO

LL
 R

D

S  
J A

C
K

S O
N  

R D

C O R N E R S T O N E  B L V D

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALI & DORA FAMITAFRESHI / BENTLEY ESTATES SUBDIVISION, LOT 56

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



2-B

1

212019181716

15

14 13 12
1110 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

SUBD.
HEART HOSPITAL

CORNERSTONE

337.42'

22
5.4

9'

56 .57'
326.30 '

ST
ON

EW
OR

KS
 PL

AZ
A

347.34 '

344.86 '

343.62 '

345.80 '

342.38 '

341.14 '

357.25 '

354.78 '

353.54 '

352.30 '

348.82 '

348.58 '

356.02 '

351.06 '

364.29 '

363.68 '

363.00 '

362.28 '

361.40 '

359.48 '

358.40 '

360.48 '

365.26 '

364.81 '

60
.00

'

60
.05

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'
30

.03
'

30
.03

'

30
.00

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'

24
25
26

20
21
22

19
18
17

23

16
15
14
1312
11
9
8
7
6
5
4

10

1

32

DEL PRADO BUSINESS PARK

876543

6

-02

-00 -02 -07-05-03-01

-08

-14

-00

-05

SUBD.

CORNER

JACKSON
4

3

2

1

2
3 4

BENTLEY ESTATES

20

48
34

112111110109108107106105

18

7574
73

72

70
6968

67

716665

979899100101102103104

9695949392919089

8182838485868788
80
79

78

77

7664
6362

61

60

59

58

57

56
55

54
53

52

51

50
49 47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40

39

38

37

36

33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

19
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
76
5
4
3
2

1

35

S5950-00-004-0006-

M2650-00-002-0003-

M2650-00-003-0001-00

L3
90

0-0
0-0

00
-00

57
-00

M2650-00-003-0008-

-12 -13

-08
-08

-09

1

RENO SUBD

3132 2930 2728

21 43 65

242526

987

JACKSON PALMS DEVELOPMENT

16 17 18 19

20

2122232425

26272829

30

31

PH. II 

NORTHPOINT SUBDIVISION10

11

12131415

987
654321

6

5

7

4

8

3

9

2
1

BORDERLAND RETREAT
14 13 12 23 24

25
26
27

28 29

77
76
75
74
73

8578

96

5

72 69 68 67

50

33 32 31

11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

79 80 81 82 83 84

95 94 93 92 91 90

15
86 14
87 13
88 12
89 11

4 3 2 1

678910

71 70

4948474645

66

51

65

52

64

53

63

54

62

55

61

56

60

57

59

58 35 36 37 38 39

3034

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34 39 40

4138
4237
4336
4435 40414243444546

53
52
51
50
49
48

47

BLOCK 2BLOCK 1 65432110987654321

LOT 2, BLOCK 4

LOT 1, BLOCK 4

2423222120191817161514
1A

1
2
3
4
5

BL
OC

K 9

6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15

BLOCK 13

BLOCK 12

LOT 2
LOT 1, BLOCK 7

BL
OC

K 6

1
2
3
4
5
6

BL
OC

K 5

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

"D"LOT

LO
T "

F"
LO

T "
G"

LOT"B"

"E"LOT

16

18

1920

1721

15

14

129

13
118 10

222324252627

LOT"A"

LOT  1

6 74 5

"C"LOT

2 3

74

75

76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89 59

60

CORNERSTO
NE MEDICAL P

ARKLOT 1, BLOCK 14 LOT 1, BLOCK 10 LOT 1, BLOCK 11

8

1

Mc
CO

LL
 R

D.
 - F

.M
. 2

06
1

JA
CK

SO
N 

RO
AD

 - F
.M

. 3
36

2

TRENTON ROAD

3

AL
EX

IS-
MA

RY
-JO

-S
AR

AH
SU

BD
IVI

SIO
N

1

-02

11A

12A

13
A

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E

ME
DI

CA
L P

AR
K 

PH
 III

RE
SU

B 
LO

TS
 1-

13
 B

LK
 8

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E

COSMOPOLITAN
LOT 1

CHRISTOPHER M. JO
B

LOT 1

MAR
VA

L P
LA

ZA
 SU

BD
.

1AM
MEN

DE
D

P A S E O  D E L  P R A D O  S T

SH
EF

FI
EL

D
 S

T

BA
TT

EY
 S

T

O
XF

O
R

D
 S

T

B R
I S

T O
L

S T

Z I M M E R M A N  S T

KI
LL

EB
RE

W
 S

T

Q
U I

L I
G

Y
S TKA

AT ST

A L
L I

S O
N

 S
T

Q
UI

L I
G

Y
S T

B AT T E Y
S T

AL
LI

SO
N

 S
T

W  A L B E R T A  R D

M A R T I N
D R

O L I V A  S T

V I C T O R I A  A V E

W O R T H I N G T O N
S T

N O R T H P O I N T  D R

C H U R C H I L L  A V EC H U R C H I L L
A V E

W  H A M P T O N  A V E

S 
M

C
CO

LL
 R

D

S  
J A

C
K

S O
N  

R D

C O R N E R S T O N E  B L V D

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALI & DORA FAMITAFRESHI / BENTLEY ESTATES SUBDIVISION, LOT 56

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION





ncavazos
Highlight

ncavazos
Rectangle



 



COURTYARD 

 

REAR 
SETBACK 



Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022 

ALI FAMITAFRESHI - 4809 SHEFFIELD STREET 



  

Variance Request 

 

VIVIAN VILLARREAL  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: March 18, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7E 

Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301 Single-Family Lot 

and Building Standards, Setbacks, 2) Section 3.505(A) Easements and Utilities, and 3) 

2.301(B)(2)(a) Accessory Structures to Single Family Uses, Floor Area, Lot 2, Willow Creek 

Subdivision, located at 1611 South Jackson Road, as requested by Alfonso Quintanilla, P.E., on 

behalf of Vivian Villarreal 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting three variances to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) to 

accommodate existing accessory structures that are located in the side yard setbacks and over a 

utility easement. These structures exceed 30% of the floor area of the principal structure. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located on the west side of South Jackson Road, approximately 110 ft. south of 

West Freddy Gonzalez Drive, and is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District. 

Adjacent zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District to the north and south, and 

Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District to the east and west. Adjacent land uses are 

residential in all directions. 

Background and History 

The property is part of the Willow Creek Subdivision, recorded on May 26, 1993. The applicant 

wishes to sell the subject property; however, numerous accessory structures were built by the 

applicant without necessary building permits. Applicant and agent met with City staff on March 

10, 2022, to discuss the request. Variances are needed to proceed with sale of the property. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 39 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property has 97.51 ft. of frontage on South Jackson Road and a depth 233.73 ft. for a total 

lot area of 22, 716.9 sq. ft. A survey of the subject property shows eight accessory structures in 

the rear yard. Of these structures, four are located in the side yard setbacks, two are located in 

a utility easement, and two are located in both the side yard setback and utility easement. At 

least two of the structures are built over existing property lines. The total floor area of these 

structures exceeds 30% of the floor area of the principle structure. UDC Section 3.301 requires 7 

ft. side yard setbacks for this zoning district and prohibits structures in this area. UDC Section 

3.505 prohibits any intrusion structures in utility easements. UDC Section 2.301 limits the floor 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

VIVIAN VILLARREAL  Page 2 

area of freestanding accessory structures to 30% of the floor area of the principle structure. None 

of the existing structures were built with proper permitting or inspection by the City. 

The applicant stated that the accessory structures and related covered areas were built for 

medical purposes applicable at the time. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of these variance requests and that the applicant respect required 

setbacks and easements. No extraordinary or exceptional conditions to justify these requests 

have been established, as is required by UDC Section 14.404(D) for variance approval. Should the 

variances be granted, staff recommends that it be with the following conditions: 

1. Variance is limited to the footprint of the existing structures as indicated on the survey. 

2. Existing structures are inspected and certified for structural integrity by a third-party 

licensed professional engineer. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



S 
JA

C
K

S
O

N
 R

D

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

EA
SY

ST

R
IV

E
R

O
A

K
S

 D
R

SA
N

 R
A

U
L 

AV
E

A
N

T H
O

N
Y  

D
R

P O
S

T  O
A

K
S

 R
D

L A U R E L

O A K  WA Y

SU
M

M
E

R
FI

E
L D

 D
R

FO
R

T
H

O
O

D
AV

E

M A R Y  A V E

R E N E E  L N

J O H N  A V E

H
ER

IT
A

G
E

O
A

K
S 

R
D

O A K S
P L A C E

P R E S I D I O
D R

H E R T I A G E
O A K S

P I N  O A K  R D

W I L D F L O W E R
D R

P H E A S A N T  D R

ZE
P

H
E

R
 A

V
E

R I V E R
O A K S  L N

R I V E R  D R

H E B
A L L E Y

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

B
LU

E
B

O
N

N
E

T  
A

V
E

N O R M A  L N

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

VI
N

A 
AV

E

O A K S  R
D

A
N

A
C

U
A

 C
IR

A
N

A
C

U
A

 C
IR

A
S

H
 C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

 S
T

H
A

R
V

E
S T

 S
T

EA
SY

 S
T

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALFONSO QUINTANILLA / VIVIAN VILLARREAL

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE



-20

-17

-15

-02

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

11 10 9

-15
DE LA VINA ELEM.

JACKSON ROAD SCHOOL

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

4

32
1

WE
ST

AL
TA

MI
RA

 

2

CO
PP

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

PH. 3

PH. 2PH.1
54535251

89 88 87 86 85 84

83
82

81
80

7978777675747372
71
70

69 68 67 66 65 64 63 62
61
60
59
58
57
56
55

T2100-00-275-0016-

T2100-00-275-0007-

T2100-00-275-0001-

T2100-00-274-0005-

-09

-05

-09-06

-10

-01

-00

-31

-14

-11

-10

-12

-27

-17

-21  -16

-19  -20         -15

-22

-00          -30      -32        -28

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II JA

CK
SO

N 
RO

AD
 - F

.M
. 3

36
2

FREDDY GONZALEZ

61

77

78

79
80

73

74
75
76

72
71
70
69

63
64

56
57
58
59
60

62

68
67
66
65

55
54

53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45

MO
NT

E V
ER

AN
DA

32

1

18
19
20

14
15
16
17

13

PRESIDIO SUBD.
68

21

20

6650

30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22

65 64 63 62 61

57

60

58

59 19

18

17

16
91011

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92
AU

ST
IN

 TE
RR

AC
E

1

2
3
4
5
6
7

12

11

10

9
8

1 2

35 34

35 37

70 69 68

10

5

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

2627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

1660

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99

115

116

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

18

1920

21

22

UNIT NO.2

27
28

23
24

25 26

25

2221

31
30

29

27
26

2423

28

CITRUS ESTATES

POINT WEST SUBD. UNIT NO.3

5

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

. 12
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

3
4 7

8

9

PO
ST

 OA
KS

 SU
BD

.

18

19
20
21
22

23

34

35

46 47 48
49

50
51
52

53

54

55

56
57
58
59
60

61 62
63

64
6566

67

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.
1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
1011

12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54
55

56

57
58
59

60
61

62
63

6465

66

67 68 69

70
71

72 73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

128127126125124123122

9091929394

101
102

100

104 10310
5

9897 99

109
108

107
106

96
95

121120

118
117

116

113
112 111

114
115

110

119

50

1
2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

49
48

47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34
33

1918

55

49
48

64

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

1

7 8 9 10 11

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

54 1
53
52
51
50

55
56

49
48
47
46

57
58
59
60

2 3 4 5

86
85

6
7
8
984

83
82
81

10
11
12
13

62
63

67

42

44
45

43

61

64

40
41

39

65

66

38
37
36
35

68
69
70
71

34

33 32 31

17

80
79
78

15
14

16

77
76

18
19
20

25

75
74

73
72

21
22
23
24

2930 28 27 26

1

2
3
4
5
6
7

8

9 10 11

12

13

14

15
16

252627
28

29
30 31 32

373839
40

41

42 43 44 45

6869

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13
14
15

16171819

20
21
22
23
2425

26
27
28
29

30313233

3435363738394041
42
43
44

17

24

33

36

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

7

1 2 3 4 5 6

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

2

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

32

20

HERITAGE OAKS 

-13

-09

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N 

RD

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

EA
SY

S T

RI
VE

R
O

A
K

S 
D

R

SA
N

 R
AU

L 
AV

E

A N
T H

O
N

Y  
D

R

P O
S T  O

A
K S  R

D

L A U R E L

O A K  WAY

SU
M

M
ER

FI
E L

D
 D

R

FO
R

T
HO

O
D

AV
E

M A R Y  A V E

R E N E E  L N

J O H N  A V E

HE
R

IT
AG

E
O

AK
S 

R
D

O A K S
P L A C E

P R E S I D I O
D R

H E R T I A G E
O A K S

P I N  O A K  R D

W I L D F L O W E R
D R

P H E A S A N T  D R

ZE
PH

ER
 A

VE

R I V E R
O A K S  L N

R I V E R  D R

H E B
A L L E Y

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

BL
UE

BO
N

NE
T  

AV
E

N O R M A  L N

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

VI
N

A 
AV

E

O A K S  R
D

AN
A

C
UA

 C
IR

AN
A

C
UA

 C
IR

AS
H 

CI
R

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E  

S T

H A
R V

E S
T  

S T
EA

SY
 S

T

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALFONSO QUINTANILLA / VIVIAN VILLARREAL

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



-20

-17

-15

-02

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

11 10 9

-15
DE LA VINA ELEM.

JACKSON ROAD SCHOOL

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

4

32
1

WE
ST

AL
TA

MI
RA

 

2

CO
PP

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

PH. 3

PH. 2PH.1
54535251

89 88 87 86 85 84

83
82

81
80

7978777675747372
71
70

69 68 67 66 65 64 63 62
61
60
59
58
57
56
55

T2100-00-275-0016-

T2100-00-275-0007-

T2100-00-275-0001-

T2100-00-274-0005-

-09

-05

-09-06

-10

-01

-00

-31

-14

-11

-10

-12

-27

-17

-21  -16

-19  -20         -15

-22

-00          -30      -32        -28

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II JA

CK
SO

N 
RO

AD
 - F

.M
. 3

36
2

FREDDY GONZALEZ

61

77

78

79
80

73

74
75
76

72

71
70
69

63
64

56
57
58
59
60

62

68
67
66
65

55
54

53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45

MO
NT

E V
ER

AN
DA

32

1

18
19
20

14
15
16
17

13

PRESIDIO SUBD.
68

21

20

6650

30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22

65 64 63 62 61

57

60

58

59 19

18

17

16
91011

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92
AU

ST
IN

 TE
RR

AC
E

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

12

11

10

9
8

1 2

35 34

35 37

70 69 68

10

5

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8
9
10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

2627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

1660

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99

115

116

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

18

1920

21

22

UNIT NO.2

27
28

23
24

25 26

25

2221

31
30

29

27
26

2423

28

CITRUS ESTATES

POINT WEST SUBD. UNIT NO.3

5

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

3
4 7

8

9

PO
ST

 OA
KS

 SU
BD

.

18

19
20
21
22

23

34

35

46 47 48
49

50
51
52

53

54

55

56
57
58
59
60

61 62
63

64
6566

67

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.
1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
1011

12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54
55

56

57
58
59

60
61

62
63

6465

66

67 68 69

70
71

72 73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

128127126125124123122

9091929394

101
102

100

104 10310
5

9897 99

109
108

107
106

96
95

121120

118
117

116

113
112 111

114
115

110

119

50

1
2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

49
48

47 46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34
33

1918

55

49
48

64

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

1

7 8 9 10 11

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

54 1
53
52
51
50

55
56

49
48
47
46

57
58
59
60

2 3 4 5

86
85

6
7
8
984

83
82
81

10
11
12
13

62
63

67

42

44
45

43

61

64

40
41

39

65

66

38
37
36
35

68
69
70
71

34

33 32 31

17

80
79
78

15
14

16

77
76

18
19
20

25

75
74

73
72

21
22
23
24

2930 28 27 26

1

2
3
4
5
6
7

8

9
10 11

12

13

14

15
16

252627
28

29
30 31 32

373839
40

41

42 43 44 45

6869

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13
14

15

16171819

20

21

22
23
2425

26
27
28
29

30313233

3435363738394041
42
43
44

17

24

33

36

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

7

1 2 3 4 5 6

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

2

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

32

20

HERITAGE OAKS 

-13

-09

S 
JA

C
KS

O
N

 R
D

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

EA
SY

ST

RI
VE

R
O

A
KS

 D
R

SA
N

 R
AU

L 
AV

E

A N
T H

O
N

Y  
D R

P O
S T  O

A
K S  R D

L A U R E L

O A K  WAY

SU
M

M
ER

FI
E L

D
 D

R

FO
R

T
HO

O
D

AV
E

M A R Y  A V E

R E N E E  L N

J O H N  A V E

HE
R

IT
AG

E
O

AK
S 

RD

O A K S
P L A C E

P R E S I D I O
D R

H E R T I A G E
O A K S

P I N  O A K  R D

W I L D F L O W E R
D R

P H E A S A N T  D R

ZE
PH

ER
 A

VE

R I V E R
O A K S  L N

R I V E R  D R

H E B
A L L E Y

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

BL
U

EB
O

NN
ET

 A
V E

N O R M A  L N

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

VI
N

A 
AV

E

O A K S  R
D

AN
AC

UA
 C

IR

AN
AC

UA
 C

IR

AS
H 

CI
R

M
E S

Q
U I

T E
 S

T

H A
R V

E S
T  

S T
EA

SY
 S

T

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ALFONSO QUINTANILLA / VIVIAN VILLARREAL

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION





dcolina
Rectangle





10.00’ Utility  
& Irrigation Easement 



Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022 

VIVIAN VILLARREAL - 1611 SOUTH JACKSON ROAD 











  

Variance Request 

 

  Page 1 
MARILYN K. HOUTS  

Planning & Zoning Staff Report       Prepared on:   March 21, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  March 30, 2022 

Agenda Item 7F 

Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and 

Building Standards, Setbacks, 29.130 acres out of Lot 3, Section 276, Texas-Mexican Railway 

Company’s Survey, Lots 1-76 of proposed North McColl Estates Subdivision, located at 501 North 

McColl Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of Marilyn K. Houts 

 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

3.303, as it applies to multifamily residential setbacks. The applicant is proposing to reduce the 

front, side, and rear setbacks for 76 lots in the proposed North McColl Estates Subdivision by as 

much as 50% of UDC requirements. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The properties are located on the south side of West Schunior Street, approximately 300 ft. west 

of North McColl Road (FM 2061) and is within the City of Edinburg city limits. The property was 

rezoned from Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC 7.1) District to Auto Urban Residential (AU) 

District at the City Council meeting of March 9, 2021.  

Adjacent zoning is Urban Residential (UR) District to the north, Auto Urban Residential (AU) 

District to the east and Commercial General (CG) District to the east and south, Agriculture (AG) 

District also to the south, and Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC 7.1) District and Neighborhood 

Conservation 5 (NC 5) District to the west. The surrounding area consists of single family, multi-

family, and commercial uses.  

Background and History 

The proposed North McColl Estates Subdivision received preliminary approval by the Planning & 

Zoning Commission on January 17, 2022. The applicant is proposing to develop a multifamily 

residential development at this location. 

 

Subdivision Variances reducing the required right of way and paving width, required lot width, 

and block length for this subdivision were granted by the City Council at their February 1, 2022 

meeting. A Zoning Board of Adjustment Request for Variance Application with a letter from the 

project engineer, was received on February 2, 2022. The applicant is requesting a reduction for 

front, side, and rear setbacks for lots 1 through 76 of this subdivision. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

  Page 2 
 

 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 59 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor and one against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The subdivision is in an “L” shape and has 317.89 ft. of frontage on North McColl Road and 1,270 

ft. at its deepest point for a tract size of 29.130 acres. There are proposed access points on West 

Schunior Street on the north side and a connection to North McColl Road on the east side.  

Multi-Family Lot and Building Standards, as required by the UDC, call for 20 ft. setbacks for street 

yards and rear yards and 6 ft. setbacks per side. The plat submitted to the City during the 

subdivision review and variance process showed proposed structures that met the required 20 

ft. front/rear and 6 ft. side setbacks. The variance now requested proposes a reduction to the 

front and rear setbacks, from 20 ft. to 10 ft., and a reduction to the side setbacks from 6 ft. to 5 

ft., reductions of 50% and 16.67% respectively. The preliminary plat proposes a 15 ft. utility 

easement along the street yards. This easement is greater than the setback requested and may 

pose a problem without reduction of the easement or further variance. 

Three Subdivision Variances have been approved for this subdivision, reducing the required 

street right-of-way by 20%, paving by 7%, increasing the maximum block length 16.87%, and 

reducing the required lot width by 15% or more per lot. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of this request. Setbacks provide for more desirable development 

by providing access, visibility, ventilation, lighting, sound dispersion, drainage, and landscaping. 

Similar variances have been granted by the board and these requirements are being discussed as 

part of the UDC update.  

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Adan A. Elizondo, MPA  Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



R I P P L E  D R

L O R I  M O R G A N  D R

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

 D
R

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

D
R

M
IN

ER
A

L
R

IG
H

TS
 L

N

L A
 M

A
N

C
H

A
 D

R

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

D R I F T
D R

E L I S A
L N

A L I C E
L N

N O T R E  D A M E  D R

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

T E M P L E  D R

N 
S

TA
N

FO
R

D
 C

T

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

W O L F  D R

AU
TU

M
N

CH
A

S
E 

A
VE

N
 M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

S O L E R A  D R

W  A L T E Z A  D R

N
 K

R
IS

TI
E

 D
R

N
 A

M
B

E
R

 D
R

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

SA
N

TA
AN

N
A

 R
D

S H A D O W  W O O D  S T

M I L L
W O O D  S T

LA
R

A
M

IE
 D

R

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

S T R A T O S P H E R E  A V E

F R O N T I E R  D R

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

Z E L M A  S T

J O B Y  S T

FA I T H  H I L L  S T

S A R A H
E V E N S  S T

JA
SP

E
R

 S
T

N 
A

L T
E Z

A  
D

R

N
 M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

C
O

F F
E E

 M
I L

L  
D

R

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

BA
LT

IC
 A

VE

A U D R E Y  L N

A L I C E  L N

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

LO
YO

LA
 D

R

B
O

S
TO

N
C

O
L L

E G
E  

D
R

YA
L E

 D
R

M
AT

T H
EW

 A
V

E

ST
E

A
M

B
O

AT
 D

R

S  
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

®
1 in = 600 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MARILYN HOUTS / MELDEN & HUNT

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE



JA
CK

SO
N 

PA
RK

 #4

Lot 1

0010-15

FOUCH EK-MEYER No. 2 

SUBD.
EDINBURG

BANK
NATIONAL

THE LAREDO

Hu go Ca nt u & Az enet h C ant u

C. O .C  NO .  2 008 - 02- 02
0.7 4 ac out  of  l ot  8, S ect io n 237  Te x- M ex

-25

-22
-12

-10

-13

-12

-11

-06

LOT 3

SUBD.

PALMBREEZE

1

LOT 1

-04 -05

-03

-21

CHAPIN ST.
-41 -35

-07

-08

-02

-00

-07

-02
-00

BA
RBIN

 COMM. C
EN

TE
R

LOT 1

LOT 2

39
2.

9
4'

23
7.

1
5'

32
9.

7
5'

31 0. 7 0'

14 1. 0 9'

62
.8

8
'

13 7. 4 7'16 9. 6 2'

-00

No.1

No.2

45

44

LOWE'S COMMERCIAL SUBD.

82
4.

1
6'

LOT 1

76
1.

0
5'

22 7. 7 0'

30 0. 0 0'

23
22

-25

34

SUBDIVISION86 85 84 83 82 81 80 79 78 77 76 75 74 73 72 71 70 69 68

67
66
65

54
5352

5139
38372322

73A B C D DC
72

BA DC71BA DC70BA DC69BA DC68BA DCBA 67

46 45

2625
24232221201918171615

14

13
1211

10

9

876543

2

1

"B"

23

7642 3 561 16258 59 60

11

10

12

13

14

9
8

119

120
121

122
123 142

145

146

144
143

20

17

18

15

19

16125
126
127

129

128

130

124

136
135

141
140

139

138
137

91

114

118
117

115

116

94

93

95

92

86

64 89
90

87

88

63

107

111
112

109

110

108

98

97

100
99

102

101

79

83

81

82

84

80

85 11396

21

22

242527

132

2830 29

133

2634

104 105

33 3132

77
78 103 106 131 134

CERDA
GILBERTO

RU
MA

LD
O 

CE
RD

A
OS

CA
R 

& O
LG

A 
CE

RD
A

IM
EL

DA
 B

ER
NA

L
AN

GE
LIT

A C
ER

DA
RA

MI
RO

 R
EY

NA

TR
AC

T 5
TR

AC
T 4

TR
AC

T 3
TR

AC
T 2

TR
AC

T 1

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

PH
. 3 PH

. 4

122
123
124120

125119
118

127117

128116
115

126

130114

132
131

112
113

133111

134
135109

110

129

121

136108

137

FOUCH EK-MEYER No.4 

2-A

3

1-A

908988
8786858483828180

56 55 54 53 52 51 50 49 48 47 46

45444342414039383736

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

PH. 2

PH. 1 PH. 2

81

80
79

78
77
76

75
74

73
72717069686766

65
64
63

62
61
60
59
58

45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56
57

543

-05 -00

T2100-00-276-0011-

T2100-00-276-0002-

T2100-00-276-0007-
T2100-00-276-0006-

T2100-00-276-0003-

T2100-00-238-0016- T2100-00-237-0016-T2100-00-237-0014-

T2100-00-237-0009-00
T2100-00-237-0011-

T2100-00-237-0012-

-20

-06

-10-06 -09

-03

-04

-05

-15

-04

-05

-03

-01

-00

-01

-06     -01

-06

-04-06-03-01

-10

-11

-20

-09-08

-07

-00

               -05

T2100-00-276-0001-04

T2100-00-276-0001-03

-00

-02

-14

-19-18

-41
-00

-06              -08          -07

-20                -13
-10

-09

-12

-15

T2100-00-237-0015-

-02

-08

-07

-16

-01

No.1

JARDIN DEL VALLE
No.2 6059585756555453525150494847

42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30

29282726252423222120191817

46

43

16

15

14

13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

42

41

43

40

15

14

13

39

16

JACKSON

PH. 2

PLAZA
171615

14

13121110

9

876

5

432

1

PH. 2

LO
S 

MO
LIN

OS

41 40

39
3837

36 35

34

3332

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

PARSLEY SUBD 12345678910

40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47

35

36

37

38

39

MILYCA SUBD

91011121314

87654

16

15

2
3

1

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

16
15

14

13

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

24
25

JA
CK

SO
N 

PA
RK

 #326

25

24

23

22

21

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

LOS MOLINOS

1718

19

20 7

2

3

4

21

22

23

24

6 5

1

16 15 14 13

12

1198 10

MONMACK TERRACE

12

15

1

13

14

11 10

16

9

17

8

18

7

19

6

20

5

21

4

22

3

23

2

24 25 26

SALVA TIERRA SUBD.

119 10 41 42
1

2

3

4
5 6

7

8

2726

25

24

12

23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13

28

40

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

90 91 92

89

76

88
87
86
85
84
83
82
81
80
79
78

77 105
104
103
102
101
100
99
98
97
96
95
94
93

106 107

18B
C
D

19

65

A B C D
66

UNIVERSITY VILL
AGE

57

56

43

58 59 60

44

55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45

74 75

72
71
70
69
68
67
66
65
64
63
62

73

61

INLAND GROVES ESTATES1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
3839

40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 54

CH
EY

EN
NE

 C
OM

ME
RC

IA
L P

AR
K

14 13 12 11 10

9
876
54
3
2

1

1

HACIENDA FORD

2

15A14A
13A12A11A
10A
9A

8

ALTEZA ESTATES

1

39

40

30 29 20

14

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

15
16
17
18
19

41

38

42

37

43

36

44

35

31
32
33
34

28 21
27 22
26 23
25 24

7
6 5 4

3

16 1518 1719

2726252322

21

20

24

LAS VIOLETAS 
7 6 58910

121314

7 6
BALCONES TRAIL SUBD

7

15

10

2
Mc

CO
LL

 N
OR

TH
 S

UB
D.

1

1 2

ZUÑIGA
SUBDIVISION

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

32333435

36 37 38 39

40414243

44 45 46 47

48495051

52 53 54 55

McCOLL 
ESTATES

1

6

11

14

11

3

WE
ST

 U
NI

VE
RS

ITY
 PA

RK
 S

UB
D.

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

15 16 17 18 19
20

21
22

23

24
25

26
27282930

57 58 59

606162

McCOLL CROSSING 
SUBDIVISION

12

12

5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

3233343536373839404142

43

44

45

46
47

48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55

6465666768697071

PR
ES

TO
N G

RE
EN

S S
UB

D.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8

9

10
11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18

19202122232425

262728293031

323334353637

383940414243

444546474849

50515253545556

1

2

9

16

1

8

DOS CASAS SUBD.

MON MACK ESTATES

31

56

63

-00

-10

Sec ti on 27 6,  Te xas- M ex ica n R ai l wa y C om p any S ur vey
acr e,  o ut  o f SW  8 .8 3 ac of  l ot  1 2

Re ynal do R io jas

C. O .C  NO .  2 011 -0 5- 02

A 2. 740 A c, E xclu di ng 0. 347  o f an

-01

DO
LL

AR
 TR

EE
 10

7

LOT 1

LOT 1

HUTTON
10 1

FO
UC

HE
K-

ME
YE

R
No

. 5
 

RESUB OF LOT 1

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOWE'S COMM.

1

2

3

4

5

6

714

15

16

17

18

20

19

27

26

25

24

23

21

22

115114113112111

1

VAQUER O SUBD.

R I P P L E  D R

L O R I  M O R G A N  D R

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

 D
R

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

D
R

M
IN

ER
A

L
R

IG
H

TS
 L

N

L A
 M

A
N

C
H

A
 D

R

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

D R I F T
D R

E L I S A
L N

A L I C E
L N

N O T R E  D A M E  D R

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

T E M P L E  D R

N 
S

TA
N

FO
R

D
 C

T

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

W O L F  D R

AU
TU

M
N

CH
A

S
E 

A
VE

N
 M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

S O L E R A  D R

W  A L T E Z A  D R

N
 K

R
IS

TI
E

 D
R

N
 A

M
B

E
R

 D
R

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

SA
N

TA
AN

N
A

 R
D

S H A D O W  W O O D  S T

M I L L
W O O D  S T

LA
R

A
M

IE
 D

R

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

S T R A T O S P H E R E  A V E

F R O N T I E R  D R

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

Z E L M A  S T

J O B Y  S T

FA I T H  H I L L  S T

S A R A H
E V E N S  S T

JA
SP

E
R

 S
T

N 
A

L T
E Z

A  
D

R

N
 M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

C
O

F F
E E

 M
I L

L  
D

R

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

BA
LT

IC
 A

VE

A U D R E Y  L N

A L I C E  L N

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

LO
YO

LA
 D

R

B
O

S
TO

N
C

O
L L

E G
E  

D
R

YA
L E

 D
R

M
AT

T H
EW

 A
V

E

ST
E

A
M

B
O

AT
 D

R

S  
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

®
1 in = 600 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MARILYN HOUTS / MELDEN & HUNT

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION



JA
CK

SO
N 

PA
RK

 #4

Lot 1

0010-15

FOUCH EK-MEYER No. 2 

SUBD.
EDINBURG

BANK
NATIONAL

THE LAREDO

Hu go Ca nt u & Az enet h C ant u

C. O .C  NO .  2 008 - 02- 02
0.7 4 ac out  of  l ot  8, S ect io n 237  Te x- M ex

-25

-22
-12

-10

-13

-12

-11

-06

LOT 3

SUBD.

PALMBREEZE

1

LOT 1

-04 -05

-03

-21

CHAPIN ST.
-41 -35

-07

-08

-02

-00

-07

-02
-00

BA
RBIN

 COMM. C
EN

TE
R

LOT 1

LOT 2

39
2.

9
4'

23
7.

1
5'

32
9.

7
5'

31 0. 7 0'

14 1. 0 9'

62
.8

8
'

13 7. 4 7'16 9. 6 2'

-00

No.1

No.2

45

44

LOWE'S COMMERCIAL SUBD.

82
4.

1
6'

LOT 1

76
1.

0
5'

22 7. 7 0'

30 0. 0 0'

23
22

-25

34

SUBDIVISION86 85 84 83 82 81 80 79 78 77 76 75 74 73 72 71 70 69 68

67
66
65

54
5352

5139
38372322

73A B C D DC
72

BA DC71BA DC70BA DC69BA DC68BA DCBA 67

46 45

2625
24232221201918171615

14

13
1211

10

9

876543

2

1

"B"

23

7642 3 561 16258 59 60

11

10

12

13

14

9
8

119

120
121

122
123 142

145

146

144
143

20

17

18

15

19

16125
126
127

129

128

130

124

136
135

141
140

139

138
137

91

114

118
117

115

116

94

93

95

92

86

64 89
90

87

88

63

107

111
112

109

110

108

98

97

100
99

102

101

79

83

81

82

84

80

85 11396

21

22

242527

132

2830 29

133

2634

104 105

33 3132

77
78 103 106 131 134

CERDA
GILBERTO

RU
MA

LD
O 

CE
RD

A
OS

CA
R 

& O
LG

A 
CE

RD
A

IM
EL

DA
 B

ER
NA

L
AN

GE
LIT

A C
ER

DA
RA

MI
RO

 R
EY

NA

TR
AC

T 5
TR

AC
T 4

TR
AC

T 3
TR

AC
T 2

TR
AC

T 1

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

PH
. 3 PH

. 4

122
123
124120

125119
118

127117

128116
115

126

130114

132
131

112
113

133111

134
135109

110

129

121

136108

137

FOUCH EK-MEYER No.4 

2-A

3

1-A

908988
8786858483828180

56 55 54 53 52 51 50 49 48 47 46

45444342414039383736

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

PH. 2

PH. 1 PH. 2

81

80
79

78
77
76

75
74

73
72717069686766

65
64
63

62
61
60
59
58

45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56
57

543

-05 -00

T2100-00-276-0011-

T2100-00-276-0002-

T2100-00-276-0007-
T2100-00-276-0006-

T2100-00-276-0003-

T2100-00-238-0016- T2100-00-237-0016-T2100-00-237-0014-

T2100-00-237-0009-00
T2100-00-237-0011-

T2100-00-237-0012-

-20

-06

-10-06 -09

-03

-04

-05

-15

-04

-05

-03

-01

-00

-01

-06     -01

-06

-04-06-03-01

-10

-11

-20

-09-08

-07

-00

               -05

T2100-00-276-0001-04

T2100-00-276-0001-03

-00

-02

-14

-19-18

-41
-00

-06              -08          -07

-20                -13
-10

-09

-12

-15

T2100-00-237-0015-

-02

-08

-07

-16

-01

No.1

JARDIN DEL VALLE
No.2 6059585756555453525150494847

42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30

29282726252423222120191817

46

43

16

15

14

13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

42

41

43

40

15

14

13

39

16

JACKSON

PH. 2

PLAZA
171615

14

13121110

9

876

5

432

1

PH. 2

LO
S 

MO
LIN

OS

41 40

39
3837

36 35

34

3332

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

PARSLEY SUBD 12345678910

40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47

35

36

37

38

39

MILYCA SUBD

91011121314

87654

16

15

2
3

1

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

16
15

14

13

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

24
25

JA
CK

SO
N 

PA
RK

 #326

25

24

23

22

21

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

LOS MOLINOS

1718

19

20 7

2

3

4

21

22

23

24

6 5

1

16 15 14 13

12

1198 10

MONMACK TERRACE

12

15

1

13

14

11 10

16

9

17

8

18

7

19

6

20

5

21

4

22

3

23

2

24 25 26

SALVA TIERRA SUBD.

119 10 41 42
1

2

3

4
5 6

7

8

2726

25

24

12

23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13

28

40

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39

90 91 92

89

76

88
87
86
85
84
83
82
81
80
79
78

77 105
104
103
102
101
100
99
98
97
96
95
94
93

106 107

18B
C
D

19

65

A B C D
66

UNIVERSITY VILL
AGE

57

56

43

58 59 60

44

55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45

74 75

72
71
70
69
68
67
66
65
64
63
62

73

61

INLAND GROVES ESTATES1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
3839

40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 54

CH
EY

EN
NE

 C
OM

ME
RC

IA
L P

AR
K

14 13 12 11 10

9
876
54
3
2

1

1

HACIENDA FORD

2

15A14A
13A12A11A
10A
9A

8

ALTEZA ESTATES

1

39

40

30 29 20

14

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

15
16
17
18
19

41

38

42

37

43

36

44

35

31
32
33
34

28 21
27 22
26 23
25 24

7
6 5 4

3

16 1518 1719

2726252322

21

20

24

LAS VIOLETAS 
7 6 58910

121314

7 6
BALCONES TRAIL SUBD

7

15

10

2
Mc

CO
LL

 N
OR

TH
 S

UB
D.

1

1 2

ZUÑIGA
SUBDIVISION

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

32333435

36 37 38 39

40414243

44 45 46 47

48495051

52 53 54 55

McCOLL 
ESTATES

1

6

11

14

11

3

WE
ST

 U
NI

VE
RS

ITY
 PA

RK
 S

UB
D.

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

15 16 17 18 19
20

21
22

23

24
25

26
27282930

57 58 59

606162

McCOLL CROSSING 
SUBDIVISION

12

12

5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

3233343536373839404142

43

44

45

46
47

48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55

6465666768697071

PR
ES

TO
N G

RE
EN

S S
UB

D.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8

9

10
11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18

19202122232425

262728293031

323334353637

383940414243

444546474849

50515253545556

1

2

9

16

1

8

DOS CASAS SUBD.

MON MACK ESTATES

31

56

63

-00

-10

Sec ti on 27 6,  Te xas- M ex ica n R ai l wa y C om p any S ur vey
acr e,  o ut  o f SW  8 .8 3 ac of  l ot  1 2

Re ynal do R io jas

C. O .C  NO .  2 011 -0 5- 02

A 2. 740 A c, E xclu di ng 0. 347  o f an

-01

DO
LL

AR
 TR

EE
 10

7

LOT 1

LOT 1

HUTTON
10 1

FO
UC

HE
K-

ME
YE

R
No

. 5
 

RESUB OF LOT 1

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOWE'S COMM.

1

2

3

4

5

6

714

15

16

17

18

20

19

27

26

25

24

23

21

22

115114113112111

1

VAQUER O SUBD.

R I P P L E  D R

L O R I  M O R G A N  D R

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

 D
R

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

C
H

ES
TN

U
T

D
R

M
IN

ER
A

L
R

IG
H

TS
 L

N

L A
 M

A
N

C
H

A
 D

R

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

D R I F T
D R

E L I S A
L N

A L I C E
L N

N O T R E  D A M E  D R

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

T E M P L E  D R

N 
S

TA
N

FO
R

D
 C

T

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

W O L F  D R

AU
TU

M
N

CH
A

S
E 

A
VE

N
 M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

S O L E R A  D R

W  A L T E Z A  D R

N
 K

R
IS

TI
E

 D
R

N
 A

M
B

E
R

 D
R

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

SA
N

TA
AN

N
A

 R
D

S H A D O W  W O O D  S T

M I L L
W O O D  S T

LA
R

A
M

IE
 D

R

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

S T R A T O S P H E R E  A V E

F R O N T I E R  D R

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

Z E L M A  S T

J O B Y  S T

FA I T H  H I L L  S T

S A R A H
E V E N S  S T

JA
SP

E
R

 S
T

N 
A

L T
E Z

A  
D

R

N
 M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

C
O

F F
E E

 M
I L

L  
D

R

S A L V A T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

BA
LT

IC
 A

VE

A U D R E Y  L N

A L I C E  L N

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

LO
YO

LA
 D

R

B
O

S
TO

N
C

O
L L

E G
E  

D
R

YA
L E

 D
R

M
AT

T H
EW

 A
V

E

ST
E

A
M

B
O

AT
 D

R

S  
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

W  S T AT E  H I G H W A Y  1 0 7

®
1 in = 600 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MARILYN HOUTS / MELDEN & HUNT

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY









Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of March 30, 2022 

MELDEN & HUNT/MARILYN K. HOUTS - 501 NORTH MCCOLL ROAD 





01
/2

0/
22

02
/2

3/
22

Alex Rios - Chairperson A P
Eddie Garza - Vice Chairperson P P
Andre Maldonado - Regular P P
George Cardenas - Regular A P
Diane Teter - Regular P P
Ponciano Longoria - Alternate P P
Marc Moran - Alternate P P
Michael Cantu - Alternate P P
Vacant

2022 ATTENDANCE RECORD                                                                                                      
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS COMMISSION MEETINGS


	ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
	 Consider approval of the Minutes for the February 23, 2022 Regular Meeting
	 Attachment A: February 23, 2022 Minutes

	 Reconsider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C), Residential Use District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, located at 2002 and 2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith Canales
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Survey
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 12.301(A)(4), On Premise Signs, Free Standing Sign, being Lot 2, West Meadows Plaza Subdivision, located at 3021 West Freddy Gonzalez Drive, as requested by PongoRGV Holdings LLC. 
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo
	 HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 2.301(D)(9), Fences Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 12, Los Lagos Phase I Subdivision, located at 2320 Arlina Drive, as requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses T. Ashukem
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.301, Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, Lot 56, Bentley Estates Subdivision, located at 4809 Sheffield Street, as requested by Ali Famitafreshi
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Annotated Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301 Single-Family Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, 2) Section 3.505(A) Easements and Utilities, and 3) 2.301(B)(2)(a) Accessory Structures to Single Family Uses, Floor Area, Lot 2, Willow Creek Subdivision, located at 1611 South Jackson Road, as requested by Alfonso Quintanilla, P.E., on behalf of Vivian Villarreal
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Survey
	 Annotated Survey
	 Site Photo
	 Notification Response

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, 29.130 acres out of Lot 3, Section 276, Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, Lots 1-76 of proposed North McColl Estates Subdivision, located at 501 North McColl Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of Marilyn K. Houts
	 Aerial Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Application
	 Variance Request
	 Reduced Plat
	 Site Photo
	 Response AGAINST

	 Attendance Roster
	 Attachment A: 2022 Attendance Roster




